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C O N T E N T S

(a) Energizer Holdings, Inc. was spun off from Ralston Purina Company (Ralston) on April 1, 2000. The pro forma fiscal 2000 financial data is presented assuming the spin-off had occurred as of October 1, 1999. 
The pro forma fiscal 1999 financial data is presented assuming the spin-off had occurred as of October 1, 1998.

(b) Fiscal 2000 reflects the elimination of the one month lag in reporting of international operations' results. See discussion in Note 2 to the financial statements.
(c) The historical financial information for fiscal years 2000 and 1999 reflect the period during which Energizer was operated as a business segment of Ralston Purina Company.
(d) The pro forma diluted weighted shares outstanding is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding of Ralston common stock outstanding prior to the spin-off (adjusted for the distribution of one 

share of Energizer stock for each three shares of Ralston stock) and in fiscal 2000, the diluted weighted-average number of shares of Energizer stock outstanding from April 1, 2000 to September 30, 2000.
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[MILLIONS]

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

2001 2000 1999

2001 2000 1999
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ENERGIZER HOLDINGS, INC.
IS THE LARGEST PUBLICLY TRADED PRIMARY BATTERY/FLASHLIGHT COMPANY IN THE

WORLD WITH TWO OF THE MOST RECOGNIZED BRANDS IN ENERGIZER® AND EVEREADY®.

ENERGIZER IS TRADED ON THE NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE UNDER THE ENR SYMBOL.

SELECTED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Pro Forma Net Earnings, Excluding Unusuals $ 87.1 $ 154.1 (a)(b) $ 125.2 (a)

Intellectual property rights income, net of tax 12.3 - -
Provision for goodwill impairment, net of tax (119.0) - -
Provisions for restructuring, net of tax (19.4) - (8.3)
Costs related to spin-off, net of tax - (3.3) -
Loss on disposition of Spanish affiliate, net of tax - (15.7) -

Pro Forma Net Earnings/(Loss) (39.0) 135.1 (a)(b) 116.9 (a)

Elimination of international operations one month lag, net of tax - 9.0 -
Incremental interest expense, net of tax - 10.0 21.2
Other pro forma costs, net of tax - 1.7 5.1
Capital loss tax benefits - 24.4 16.6

Historical Net Earnings/(Loss) from Continuing Operations (39.0) 180.2 (c) 159.8 (c)

Net Gain (Loss) from Discontinued Operations - 1.2 (79.8)

Historical Basis Net Earnings/(Loss) $ (39.0) $ 181.4 $ 80.0 (c)

D I L U T E D  E A R N I N G S  P E R  S H A R E
[DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE]

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

Pro Forma Net Earnings, Excluding Unusuals $ 0.93 $ 1.60 (a)(b) $ 1.22 (a)

Intellectual property rights income, net of tax 0.13 - -
Provision for goodwill impairment, net of tax (1.27) - -
Provisions for restructuring, net of tax (0.21) - (0.08)
Costs related to spin-off, net of tax - (0.04) -
Loss on disposition of Spanish affiliate, net of tax - (0.16) -

Pro Form Net Earnings/(Loss) (0.42) 1.40 (a)(b) 1.14 (a)

Elimination of international operations one month lag, net of tax - 0.09 -
Incremental interest, net of tax - 0.11 0.21
Other pro forma costs, net of tax - 0.02 0.05
Capital loss tax benefits - 0.25 0.16

Historical Net Earnings/(Loss) from Continuing Operations (0.42) 1.87 (c) 1.56 (c)

Net Gain (Loss) from Discontinued Operations - 0.01 (0.78)

Historical Basis Net Earnings/(Loss) $(0.42) $1.88 (c) $ 0.78 (c)

Pro Forma Diluted Weighted Shares Outstanding 94.1 96.3 (d) 102.6 (d)



C U R R E N T  B U S I N E S S  C L I M A T E

Competition is more intense than ever as market conditions have deteriorated.

On a global basis, growth in the battery category has slowed from historic levels

of nearly 7 percent on a unit basis. Device sales, which drive the category, have

fallen dramatically, and retail foot traffic is off, resulting in lower impulse-driven

battery purchases. In response, major retailers have reduced inventories, further

depressing sales volumes.

With slower category growth, the level of competition has increased with the

major players vying for a bigger share of our retail partners’ purchases. We face

tough competitors with substantial resources striving to increase market share.

Longer term, volume growth should return to the battery category as world

economies recover, although price competition will likely remain. Success will

require cost competitiveness as well as the delivery of superior value to retail

customers and the consumer.

F I N A N C I A L  R E S U L T S

Our financial results in fiscal year 2001 were clearly disappointing, following 

a good year that benefited from the Y2K buying surge. Sales fell from $1.9 billion

M E S S A G E  T O  O U R

s h a r e h o l d e r s

ENERGIZER’S FIRST FULL YEAR AS A STAND-ALONE COMPANY 

PROVED TO BE EXTREMELY CHALLENGING AND VERY DISAPPOINTING.

VOLUME GROWTH SLOWED DRAMATICALLY DURING THE YEAR, AND WE

WERE FACED WITH INCREASED COMPETITION AND A CONSOLIDATING

CUSTOMER BASE. WE ALSO EXPERIENCED CURRENCY DEVALUATIONS 

IN A NUMBER OF KEY OVERSEAS MARKETS. THE END RESULT WAS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FAR BELOW FISCAL 2000.

to just under $1.7 billion, an 11 percent decline. Earnings per share fell from

$1.60 to $0.93. Our share price fell from $24.50 at the end of last fiscal year to

$16.62 at September 28, 2001.

T A K I N G  T H E  I N I T I A T I V E

Since we cannot control external events, we are concentrating our efforts 

on those areas we can influence. We are taking appropriate actions to 

address the current business climate and adapt to the new realities of the 

marketplace. To that end, we are:

1. Managing our business to maximize cash returns.

2. Streamlining our global operations to reduce costs 

and rationalize capacity.

3. Reducing global overhead.

4. Reinvesting some of these savings to strengthen the 

Energizer consumer franchise through increased advertising.



J. Patrick Mulcahy

Chief Executive Officer

Energizer Holdings, Inc.

November 20, 2001
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P U R S U I N G  O U R  M I S S I O N

Our fundamental mission remains to provide consumers with long-lasting, 

economical, portable power ... and do it better than anyone else. In our pursuit 

of that mission we will:

• deliver superior value to consumers by providing unsurpassed product 

performance and superior value;

• reinforce our position with our retail customers as the battery and flashlight 

category expert by delivering best-in-class portfolio solutions and customer

focused programs that take cost out of the value chain; and

• strengthen our standing among stakeholders as an outstanding organization 

to work for, to invest in and to have in the community.

As we confront today’s changing marketplace, we will continue to deliver

innovative answers to consumer needs for portable power. As we manage the

new realities, one reality is certain – we can respond and adapt ... we can

compete and win ... and we will make our own future.
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R E L Y I N G  O N  O U R  P R O V E N

s t r e n g t h s

P O W E R F U L  P R O D U C T S

Energizer delivers the industry’s most comprehensive portfolio of products.

No other battery manufacturer anywhere in the world comes close to matching

our scope in meeting consumer needs for portable power and lighting products.

This extensive portfolio includes carbon zinc; value, premium and super-premium

alkaline; lithium AA super-premium; photo lithium; watch/coin cells; hearing aid;

rechargeable NiMH cells; and flashlights and lanterns.

This portfolio is powered by a $100 million marketing program behind the

Energizer franchise in the United States alone. At year end, we launched a 

new advertising campaign featuring the unstoppable Energizer Bunny, among

the most recognized icons in advertising history. Commercials for Energizer e2

began airing on the season-premier episodes of popular shows such as

“Touched by an Angel,” “Frasier” and “ER” as well as the delayed World Series

and Emmy Awards, followed by ads for Energizer Max in early November.

AS WE MANAGE THE REALITY OF CHANGING MARKETS AND TACKLE THE CHALLENGES

OF A DEPRESSED ECONOMY, ENERGIZER IS RELYING ON ITS PROVEN STRENGTHS –

THE INDUSTRY’S MOST COMPLETE PRODUCT PORTFOLIO, ESTABLISHED LEADERSHIP

IN MARKETS AROUND THE WORLD, AND A STRATEGICALLY SITUATED GLOBAL 

PRODUCTION COMPLEX.

CC OO NN SS UU MM EE RR NN EE EE DD SS

P O R T F O L I O O F P R O D U C T S
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P R I M A R Y  B A T T E R I E S

Together, alkaline and carbon zinc primary batteries under the well-known

Energizer and Eveready brand names account for 82 percent of the company’s

global sales. For fiscal 2001, our share of the global market for alkaline and 

carbon zinc batteries is estimated at 28 percent and 26 percent, respectively.

In the United States today, nearly one of every three alkaline batteries sold is

made by Energizer.

Our Energizer e2 super-premium brand, introduced in June 2000, incorporates

unique titanium technology and advanced cell construction together with 

consumer-friendly features like patented E-SNAP reclosable packaging and 

an improved gauge-style tester. Based on preliminary test data, by spring 

2002, Energizer e2  will last up to 20 percent longer than when first introduced 

in the summer of 2000.

In summer 2001, we renamed and relaunched our U.S. flagship premium brand 

as Energizer Max – adding more power, personality and presence. Based on 

current estimates, the beefed up Energizer Max will outlast previous standard

Energizer up to 15 percent in both standard and high-tech tests by early 2002.

The newly restaged brand also features a new global packaging design that 

clearly communicates its long-lasting performance attributes and incorporates

consumer-friendly features such as clearly marked cell size and “use by” dating.

New attention-grabbing in-store merchandising displays showcase the new 

packaging and create excitement with bold use of the Energizer Bunny.

Our popular Eveready value brand continues to offer consumers economy 

plus a reliable brand name and dependable performance in both alkaline 

and carbon zinc batteries.

We also relaunched our line of Energizer photo batteries under the 

Energizer e2 brand name. Delivering several times the power of an alkaline 

cell, Energizer e2 photo battery is the world’s longest lasting AA 1.5V lithium 

battery in high-tech devices. Improved 35 percent across the entire line of the

most popular cell sizes – EL123, 223, 2CR5 and CR2 – Energizer e2 delivers 

the power needed for today’s high-tech, power-hungry cameras and flash units.

In addition, we are adding to our to our lineup the CRV3, used in the latest 

generation of digital cameras.

Energizer is continuously making battery product improvements across all product

lines, and by summer 2002 battery performance will be increased in base, super-

premium, photo (including the L91), Nickel Metal Hydride and miniature brands.

P R I M A R Y  A N D  M I N I A T U R E

b a t t e r i e s

ENERGIZER’S NEW ADVERTISING CAMPAIGN POSES THE QUESTION, “DO YOU HAVE

THE BUNNY INSIDE?” TO REMIND CONSUMERS THAT THE UNSTOPPABLE POWER OF

THE POPULAR ENERGIZER BUNNY IS IN ALL OUR HIGH-PERFORMANCE BATTERIES.
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Energizer Max, our newly restaged flagship

premium alkaline brand, brings long-lasting

power to the devices consumers depend 

on and enjoy – flashlights, smoke detectors,

toys, radios, remotes and electronic games.

Energizer Max features a complete 

line – AA, AAA, C, D, 9 volt, N and 

6  volt – available in a variety of 

convenient package sizes, 

Energizer e2, our advanced super-premium

product, delivers exceptional power for the

most demanding high-drain devices –

portable CD and MD players, cameras, 

and remote-control toys. These potent 

batteries are built with a unique titanium

compound and new cell construction for

improved performance and longer life.

ENR |  MANAGING REALITY | adapt ing to  change through innovat ionp.5

Attention-grabbing in-store merchandising displays showcase the renamed Energizer Max brand and its new

global packaging design. These bold, black displays prominently feature the brand’s popular icon, the Energizer

Bunny, and reinforce the new advertising message.

Innovative product and packaging options – like the Energizer 48 AA

Pack developed last year for a major wholesale club customer – 

give our retailer customers tools to help differentiate their stores

from competitors.

www.energizer.com

PROMOTION AND PACKAGING

Eveready Alkaline batteries, added to 

our product lineup a year ago, give 

value-conscious consumers reliable 

performance at an economic price 

from a recognizable, trusted name.

Eveready Super Heavy Duty is our least

expensive battery line. This carbon zinc 

product is most appropriate for 

light-to-moderate periodic power 

needs or occasional use.
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M I N I A T U R E  B A T T E R I E S

Energizer’s miniature battery business continues to offer a full line of watch,

electronic and hearing aid batteries. Utilizing diverse chemistries such as silver

oxide, zinc air, lithium and manganese dioxide, our miniature batteries provide

long-lasting power for personal organizers, keyless car remotes, handheld 

electronic games, watches, hearing aids, electronic thermometers and many

other devices. Energizer’s line of miniature batteries accounts for 4 percent of

overall company sales.

During fiscal 2001, we introduced two revolutionary zinc air hearing aid 

products. Following years of research and development, we introduced in

Europe the world’s first and only “safer for the environment” hearing aid battery

that eliminates the addition of mercury. In summer 2001, we introduced the

Energizer EZChange – the world's first hearing aid battery dispenser – to

address the drawbacks of handling and changing hearing aid batteries for 

elderly wearers, especially those with vision and dexterity problems. This 

revolutionary dispenser eliminates the need to handle the batteries or tabs 

and allows wearers to place the batteries in the hearing aid easily, quickly 

and precisely every time.

Energizer remains the only U.S. manufacturer of silver oxide watch 

batteries, and our world-renowned products are used by many prestigious 

Swiss watch producers.

Energizer EZChange simplifies the process of handling and changing hearing aid batteries. To use the dispenser, 

hearing aid wearers pull back the activator bar and rotate the easy-to-turn dial to reveal a new battery (1); then 

push the activator bar forward to automatically activate the battery and slide the battery onto the magnetic arm (2);

then insert the battery in either drop-in or snap-in style hearing aids and slide the dispenser away (3).

Energizer EZChange – the world’s first 

hearing aid battery dispenser – is the first

major hearing aid battery innovation in 

more than 30 years. Packed with premium

Energizer hearing aid batteries, this all-in-one

dispenser system works with every style of

hearing aid to eliminate the need to handle

hearing aid batteries and provide precise

placement every time.

Energizer small electronics batteries are 

precision engineered to power a broad array

of modern devices – from household health

devices like glucose monitors, blood pressure

cuffs and digital ear thermometers to keyless

remote entry systems, hand-held electronic

devices and the latest games and toys.

1. 2.

3. DROP-IN STYLE 3. SNAP-IN STYLE

Energizer Rechargeable NiMH round cell 

batteries are a formidable match for the most

advanced, high-drain devices including digital

cameras, personal digital assistants and

palmtop computers, hand-held games and

portable CD players. Combining both 

economic and environmental value, these

high-capacity cells deliver exceptional power

per charge with up to 1,000 recharges.

Energizer e2 Photo Lithium batteries 

meet the challenge of today’s high-tech, 

power-hungry digital cameras and flash units.

Our Energizer e2 Photo AA battery – the

world’s longest-lasting lithium AA battery –

weighs about one-third less than ordinary

batteries but lasts several times longer in

high-drain devices like digital cameras and

delivers three times more flashes with a 

consistent, quick recycle time.
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F L A S H L I G H T S  A N D  L I G H T I N G  P R O D U C T S  

Energizer offers consumers a complete line of innovative lighting products – 

premium and value flashlights and lanterns, novelty flashlights, and flashlights

and lanterns for home, work and outdoors. Energizer’s lighting products account

for 7 percent of overall company sales.

During the year, we introduced a number of new lighting products that have

proven to be a hit with our retail customers and consumers alike. The Energizer

Pocket LED Light and Folding LED Compact Light both feature super-bright 

LED illumination in a compact design. The DoubleBarrel Key Ring Light delivers

a high-intensity beam that can be focused with a twist of the head. A bright

flashing LED locator and a clear “Be Seen” lens ring make the new Find Me

Light easy to locate in the dark. Our Ergonomic Comfort Grip Flashlight is

designed with a soft and comfortable non-slip rubber grip. The unique, rugged

and weatherproof Energizer Outfitter Lantern features built-in storage bags with

zippered pouches and mesh pockets to hold small items from extra batteries 

to cell phones, matches, energy bars or first-aid supplies.

F L A S H L I G H T S  A N D  L I G H T I N G

p r o d u c t s

THE BLEND OF INNOVATION AND IMAGINATION THAT GOES INTO THE DEVELOPMENT

OF OUR PRODUCTS IS CLEAR IN THE NEW ENERGIZER OUTFITTER LANTERN WITH

BUILT-IN ZIPPERED POUCHES, MESH POCKETS AND INTEGRATED SHOCK CORDS.

www.energizer.com
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W O R L D  M A R K E T S

Widely recognized the world over, our Energizer and Eveready branded 

products are marketed and sold in more than 140 countries around the globe.

We manage operations in four primary geographic regions, with North America

and Asia Pacific representing a combined 77 percent of sales and 98 percent 

of operating profit.

N O R T H  A M E R I C A : The key North America region, which includes the United

States and Canada, accounts for more than 57 percent of the company’s global

sales. For fiscal 2001, sales declined 14 percent due to lower sales volume 

and unfavorable pricing and product mix. Operating profit decreased 34 percent 

reflecting lower margins, partially offset by lower advertising and promotion costs.

Our product distribution improved with the addition of major new customers last

year, and the completed rollout of Eveready Alkaline with a major retailer gives 

us a presence in more than 4,000 value discount stores nationwide. Our new

advertising campaign, with its forceful call-to-action for shoppers, is providing 

powerful support for the Energizer e2 and Energizer Max brands, while the 

introduction of Energizer EZChange is expected to fuel significant gains in our

hearing aid business.

A S I A  PA C I F I C : The important Asia Pacific market accounts for 20 percent of 

sales worldwide. Last year, sales slid 13 percent and operating profit declined 

27 percent due to currency devaluation, lower sales volume of carbon zinc and

alkaline batteries in the region, and higher product costs.

Results in this region last year were affected by external events including 

weaker currencies, slowing economies and shrinking battery markets in a 

number of Asian countries.

E U R O P E : Despite slightly higher alkaline battery volume, European sales slipped

4 percent for fiscal 2001 as a result of currency devaluation and unfavorable 

pricing and product mix which was partially offset by higher alkaline volume.

This market accounts for 15 percent of the company’s global sales. Operating

profit improved to a slight loss resulting from currency devaluation partially 

offset by higher sales, lower product costs, and lower advertising, promotion 

and overhead expenses.

Improvements in supply chain efficiencies enabled us to better synchronize our

inventories with consumer purchases, and we improved our distribution with the

addition of new customers and an expanded product line.

S O U T H  A N D  C E N T R A L  A M E R I C A : The region of South and Central America,

including Mexico, is the company’s smallest market and accounts for 8 percent 

of global sales. Higher volume of alkaline batteries helped boost sales 5 percent,

while currency devaluation and higher marketing, distribution and product costs

led to a 26 percent decline in operating profit.

G L O B A L  O P E R A T I O N S

Energizer is one of the world’s largest manufacturers of dry cell batteries and 

flashlights – manufacturing, marketing and selling products around the globe.

W O R L D W I D E  P R O D U C T I O N  C O M P L E X : In support of its worldwide marketing 

and sales efforts, Energizer operates manufacturing facilities in 12 countries on 

four continents. We operate alkaline manufacturing plants in China, Singapore,

Switzerland and the United States (2); carbon zinc plants in the Czech Republic,

Egypt, Indonesia, Kenya, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore and Sri Lanka; and

miniature battery plants in the United States. Together, these facilities produce

more than 5 billion battery cells each year. In addition, we operate lighting product

plants in China and the United States.

In light of the current global economic climate, we are placing renewed 

emphasis on reviewing our operations and capacity worldwide, as well 

as global trends and technological evolution. In 2001, we completed a 

comprehensive evaluation of our facilities and, as a result, are in the 

process of closing our carbon zinc production facility in Mexico and 

realigning other production activities.

To further optimize operations, we are implementing an advanced automated

transportation management system in all of our manufacturing plants, distribution

centers and contract packing operations throughout the United States. This

sophisticated system, expected to be fully installed in the first half of 2002, 

will include optimal load consolidation, routing, mode selection and carrier 

assignment for shipment planning plus electronic load tendering and shipment

tracking. As a result, our customers will benefit through service-focused, 

cost-effective execution of shipments.

B R O A D  R E TA I L E R  B A S E : Energizer batteries and lighting products reach 

consumers through a broad base of retailers that includes mass merchandisers,

warehouse clubs and dollar stores; supermarkets, drugstores and convenience

stores; hardware and home centers; department, toy and electronic specialty

stores; and military exchanges.

It is our singular purpose to be the battery and flashlight category expert for our

trade customers by delivering more than superior products. We provide category

management solutions and customer-focused programs that maximize customer

profitability and return on investment. We lead the industry with customer support

efforts that range from planning assistance and consultation, to promotional 

advertising and in-store merchandising, to inventory and category management.

Our customer support extends to developing unique product and packaging

options that help retailers differentiate their stores from competitors. Last year, 

we developed an Energizer 48 AA Pack and an Energizer Rechargeable Pack

for a major wholesale club, plus new lines of packages and offerings for leading 

discount and home improvement retailers. Our package development process,

relying on collaboration among our global packaging resources, enables us to 

go from concept to warehouse availability in less than three months.

R E S E A R C H  A N D  D E V E L O P M E N T: Energizer is fully determined to retain and 

reinforce its technological leadership in the primary battery business. This 

long-held commitment is reflected in our investment of more than $46 million 

in research and development in each of the last four fiscal years.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION

 (Dollars in millions except per share and percentage data)

The following discussion is a summary of the key factors management considers necessary in reviewing
Energizer Holdings, Inc.'s (Energizer) historical basis results of operations, operating segment results,
liquidity and capital resources. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Prior to April 1, 2000, Energizer was a wholly owned subsidiary of Ralston Purina Company (Ralston).
On that date, Ralston distributed the common stock of Energizer to its shareholders in a tax-free spin-oÅ.

Financial statements as of and for periods after the spin-oÅ are presented on a consolidated basis. The
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended September 30, 2000 include the
combined results of operations of the Energizer businesses under Ralston for the six months prior to the spin-
oÅ and the consolidated results of operations of Energizer on a stand-alone basis for the six months ended
September 30, 2000. The Ñnancial statements for 1999 are presented on a combined basis and reÖect periods
during which the Energizer businesses operated as wholly owned subsidiaries of Ralston. Financial statements
for periods prior to the spin-oÅ do not include certain expenses and adjustments that would have been incurred
had Energizer been a separate, independent company, and may not necessarily be indicative of results that
would have occurred had Energizer been a separate, independent company during the periods presented, or of
future results of Energizer. See the Pro Forma Statement of Earnings for the years ended September 30, 2000
and 1999 in Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Energizer is the world's largest publicly traded manufacturer of primary batteries and Öashlights and a
global leader in the dynamic business of providing portable power. Energizer manufactures and markets a
complete line of primary alkaline and carbon zinc batteries primarily under the brands Energizer e2, Energizer
and Eveready, as well as miniature and rechargeable batteries, and Öashlights and other lighting products.
Energizer and its subsidiaries operate 22 manufacturing and packaging facilities in 15 countries on four
continents. Its products are marketed and sold in more than 140 countries primarily through a direct sales
force, and also through distributors, to mass merchandisers, wholesalers and other customers.

There has been a continuing shift in consumer preference from carbon zinc batteries to alkaline batteries.
As a result, Energizer has continually reassessed its production capacity with respect to both types of batteries
and has recorded provisions related to restructuring its worldwide battery production capacity and certain
administrative functions in 2001 and 1999. Alkaline batteries are now the dominant primary battery in all
world areas with the exception of Asia and Africa. Energizer will continue to review its battery production
capacity and its business structure in light of pervasive global trends, including the evolution of technology.

Energizer's operations are managed via four major geographic areas Ó North America (the United States,
Canada and Caribbean), Asia PaciÑc, Europe, and South and Central America (including Mexico). Segment
proÑt and sales are concentrated in the North America and Asia PaciÑc areas which together account for 98%
and 77%, respectively, of 2001 segment proÑt and sales.

The battery business is highly competitive, both in the United States and on a global basis, as a number of
large battery manufacturers compete for consumer acceptance and limited retail shelf space. As measured by
A.C. Nielsen, Energizer's dollar share of the U.S. primary battery market was 32.4% in 2001, 33.5% in 2000
and 32.0% in 1999. However share for the fourth quarter of 2001 declined to 30.0% as competition in the
United States has intensiÑed.

The primary battery category declined in calendar 2000 and 2001 after unprecedented growth levels
immediately prior to the January 1, 2000 date change due to increased demand from retail customers and
consumers in anticipation of potential disruptions related to the date change. Retail inventory levels at
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December 31, 1999 were above historical norms due to Y2K-driven ordering. Following January 1, 2000,
consumer demand for batteries has generally lagged behind historical growth rates, reÖecting economic
slowdown in much of the world, and Energizer's sales to the trade have been further reduced as retail
inventory levels have declined.

Currency devaluation, relative to the U.S. dollar, in Australia, New Zealand, the Philippines and other
countries in the Asia PaciÑc region has been unfavorable to Energizer during 2000 and 2001. The Euro and
certain other European currencies have also been unfavorable to Energizer in 2000 and most of 2001. A
signiÑcant portion of Energizer's product cost is more closely tied to the U.S. dollar than to the local
currencies in which the product is sold. As such, currency devaluation relative to the U.S. dollar reduces
margins to the extent increased costs in local currency terms are not oÅset by local currency price increases.
Changes in the value of local currencies may continue to impact segment proÑtability.

REPORTING PERIOD SYNCHRONIZATION

Energizer historically reported results of international operations on a one-month lag. As a result, prior
year amounts represent results of international operations for September through August combined with the
U.S. results for October through September. Beginning in Ñscal 2001, Energizer has synchronized interna-
tional operations' reporting to be consistent with U.S. reporting.

The impact of the synchronization on the prior year results was to decrease sales by $28.4 to $1,899.3 and
net earnings by $9.0 to $171.2. The impact of the synchronization on the prior year reported earnings per share
was a decrease of $.09 per share. All statement of earnings-related discussions comparing 2001 to 2000 below
refer to comparisons of current period results to synchronized 2000 results. Synchronization adjustments to
reported results for Ñscal 2000 are presented in the Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

HIGHLIGHTS

Energizer recorded a net loss of $39.0 for the year ended September 30, 2001, compared to net earnings
of $181.4 in 2000. The loss per share was $.42, compared to earnings per basic share of $1.89 and per diluted
share of $1.88 in the prior year. Included in Ñscal 2000 results are earnings from continuing operations of
$180.2. Prior year net earnings include a net gain on disposition of discontinued operations of $1.2, or $.01 per
share, related to the Ñnal settlement of the sale of discontinued operations.

Net earnings were $80.0, or $.78 per share, for the year ended September 30, 1999. Included in 1999 net
earnings are earnings from continuing operations of $159.8, a net loss from discontinued operations of $5.6 and
a net loss on disposition of discontinued operations of $74.2.

Earnings from continuing operations decreased $210.2, or $2.21 and $2.20 per basic and diluted share,
respectively, in 2001. Current year earnings include a provision for goodwill impairment of $119.0, provisions
for restructuring of $29.8, or $19.4 after-tax, and income associated with the licensing of intellectual property
rights of $20.0, or $12.3 after-tax. Included in 2000 results were costs related to the spin-oÅ of $5.5 pre-tax, or
$3.3 after-tax, loss on disposition of Spanish aÇliate of $15.7, and capital loss tax beneÑts of $24.4. Excluding
these items, earnings from continuing operations decreased $78.7, or $.80 per share, in 2001. This decrease
was primarily attributable to lower operating results in the North America and Asia regions and higher tax
rate, partially oÅset by lower general corporate expenses and interest.

Earnings from continuing operations increased $20.4, or $.32 and $.31 per basic and diluted share,
respectively, in 2000. Included in 2000 results are the items listed in the previous paragraph. Fiscal 1999
results included provisions for restructuring of $9.9 pre-tax, or $8.3 after-tax, and capital loss tax beneÑts of
$16.6. Excluding these items, earnings from continuing operations increased $23.3, or $.35 and $.34 per basic
and diluted share, respectively, in 2000. This increase was primarily attributable to improved operating results
in North America and Asia PaciÑc and lower corporate overhead, partially oÅset by higher interest expense on
the debt assumed as part of the spin-oÅ from Ralston.
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Discontinued operations consist of Energizer's worldwide rechargeable Original Equipment Manufactur-
ers' (OEM) battery business. On November 1, 1999, that business was sold to Moltech Corporation for
approximately $20.0.

OPERATING RESULTS

Net Sales

Net sales to customers decreased $205.1, or 11%, in 2001 compared to 2000 with unfavorable pricing and
product mix, lower volumes and currency devaluation each accounting for about one-third of the decline. In
2000, net sales to customers increased $49.2, or 3%, primarily on growth in North America, partially oÅset by
declines in Europe. See comments on sales changes by region in the Segment Results section below.

Gross Margin

Gross margin dollars decreased $172.0, or 20%, in 2001 primarily on lower sales in North America and
Asia PaciÑc. Gross margin percentage declined 4.7 percentage points in 2001 to 41.0% on lower sales. Gross
margin dollars increased $64.7, or 8%, in 2000 on increases in North America and Asia PaciÑc, partially oÅset
by declines in Europe. The margin percentage in 2000 improved 2.2 percentage points to 45.8% compared to
1999 on higher volume and lower production costs in North America and Asia PaciÑc as well as lower costs in
South and Central America.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased $24.5, or 7%, in 2001 on lower corporate, Asia
PaciÑc and Europe expenses. In 2000, selling, general and administrative expense decreased $23.6, or 6%, on
lower corporate and Europe expenses, partially oÅset by increases in North America. Selling, general and
administrative expenses were 18.9%, 17.9% and 19.6% of sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Advertising and Promotion

Advertising and promotion decreased $31.1, or 19%, in 2001 on lower spending in all world areas. In
2000, advertising and promotion increased $26.9, or 20%, on higher spending in North America, partially
oÅset by decreases in Europe. Advertising and promotion as a percent of sales was 7.9%, 8.5% and 7.3% in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Segment Results

Energizer's operations are managed via four major geographic areas Ì North America (the United
States, Canada and Caribbean), Asia PaciÑc, Europe, and South and Central America (including Mexico).
This structure is the basis for Energizer's reportable operating segment information presented in Note 20 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Energizer evaluates segment proÑtability based on operating proÑt
before general corporate expenses, research and development expenses, restructuring charges, and amortiza-
tion of goodwill and intangibles. Intersegment sales are generally valued at market-based prices, and represent
the diÅerence between total sales and external sales, as presented in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Segment proÑtability includes proÑt on these intersegment sales.

North America

Net sales to customers decreased $152.9, or 14%, in 2001 with lower volume accounting for slightly more
than half of the decline. Alkaline, carbon zinc and lighting products unit volume decreased 5%, 4% and 17%,
respectively, from 2000, compared to heavy Y2K demand last year, reÖecting retail inventory reductions this
year. Unfavorable pricing and product mix accounted for the remainder of the sales decline, reÖecting
increased promotional spending. Gross margin decreased $120.8 in 2001 on unfavorable pricing and product
mix, lower volume and higher product cost rates associated with lower production levels. Segment proÑt
decreased $106.2, or 34%, as lower gross margin was partially oÅset by lower advertising and promotion
expense.
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Net sales to customers increased $92.8, or 9%, in 2000 on higher volume, partially oÅset by unfavorable
pricing and product mix. Alkaline unit volume increased 11% over 1999. Strong Y2K-driven demand early in
the Ñscal year, and incremental Energizer e2 sales in the last four months of the year, accounted for the
increased volume. Gross margin increased $54.1, with volume contributing $45.8. In addition, favorable
production costs were partially oÅset by unfavorable pricing and product mix. Segment proÑt increased $20.5,
or 7%, as higher gross margin was partially oÅset by increased advertising and promotion expense, primarily
related to the Energizer e2 launch, as well as higher marketing and distribution expenses.

Asia PaciÑc

Net sales to customers decreased $47.9, or 13%, in 2001. Excluding currency devaluation of $30.3, net
sales decreased $17.6, or 6%, on lower volume reÖecting unfavorable economic conditions in the region.
Alkaline, carbon zinc and lighting products unit volume decreased 6%, 9% and 7%, respectively, from 2000.
Segment proÑt for Asia PaciÑc decreased $28.2, or 27%, in 2001 with unfavorable currency eÅects accounting
for $19.0 of the decline. Absent currencies, segment proÑt decreased $9.2, or 9%, on lower volume and higher
product cost, partially oÅset by lower advertising and promotion and overhead expenses.

Net sales to customers increased $8.7, or 2%, in 2000. Excluding currency devaluation of $4.3, net sales
increased $13.0, or 3%. Alkaline volume increases of 8% were partially oÅset by a 2% decline in carbon zinc
volume. Segment proÑt for Asia PaciÑc increased $22.7, or 25%, in 2000 on lower production costs, higher
customer sales and higher intersegment sales. Lower production costs reÖect a variety of factors including
higher production facility utilization and lower costs resulting from a plant closing in 1999.

Europe

Net sales to customers for Europe decreased $10.8, or 4%, in 2001, which included currency devaluation
of $24.2. Absent currency eÅect, sales increased $13.4, or 5%, on higher volume, partially oÅset by unfavorable
pricing and product mix in the Ñrst three quarters of the year. Alkaline unit volume increased 19% during 2001
while carbon zinc volume declined 9%. Much of the volume increase and unfavorable pricing was due to heavy
promotional activity early in the year. Segment results for Europe improved $1.6 for the year to a loss of $2.6
and included unfavorable currency eÅects of $13.4. Absent currencies, segment proÑt increased $15.0, with
higher sales, lower advertising and promotion expense, and lower product cost accounting for $8.7 of the
increase. In addition, prior year results included an unfavorable adjustment related to estimates for
promotional and rebate programs, as well as costs related to reorganization activities, improving the year over
year comparison by approximately $6.3.

Net sales to customers for Europe decreased $44.2, or 14%, in 2000 reÖecting currency devaluation of
$28.2, lower carbon zinc volume of $11.8, and unfavorable pricing and product mix of $6.9, partially oÅset by a
1% alkaline volume gain. For the year, carbon zinc unit volume declined 14%. Segment results for Europe
improved $1.0 to a loss of $.2. Net currency impacts in 2000 were unfavorable $6.8 compared to 1999. Absent
currency impacts, segment results improved $7.8, as lower sales were partially oÅset by lower product and
overhead costs. Lower costs reÖected increased eÇciencies following a plant closing and sales and administra-
tive realignment completed in 1999 and early 2000.

South and Central America

Net sales to customers increased $6.5, or 5%, in 2001 primarily on higher volume, partially oÅset by
currency devaluation. Alkaline volume increased 5% in 2001 while carbon zinc volume declined 2%. Segment
proÑt decreased $2.5, or 26%, virtually all on currency impacts. Higher sales volumes were oÅset by higher
product costs.

Net sales to customers decreased $8.1, or 6%, in 2000 primarily on lower volume and on currency
devaluation, which could not be mitigated through pricing actions. Carbon zinc volume declined 6% while
alkaline increased 1%. Despite the sales decrease, gross margin increased $.6, or 2%, as unfavorable currency
impacts of $7.2 were more than oÅset by lower production costs and favorable pricing and product mix.
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Segment proÑt for South and Central America decreased $2.4, or 17%, in 2000 as higher marketing,
distribution and management costs were partially oÅset by the gross margin increase.

General Corporate Expenses

General corporate expenses decreased $16.2 in 2001 compared to 2000 due to lower incentive and stock
compensation costs, higher pension income, and favorable proÑt-in-inventory adjustments associated with
decreased intercompany inventory levels, partially oÅset by higher management costs, including the incremen-
tal costs of operating as a stand-alone company for a full year, compared to six months in Ñscal 2000. General
corporate expenses decreased $16.6 in 2000 due to higher pension income and lower consulting, reorganization
and information systems costs, as well as a lighting product recall charge in 1999. These costs were partially
oÅset by additional costs of operating as a stand-alone company for the last six months of Ñscal 2000. As a
percent of sales, general corporate expenses were 1.2% in 2001, 1.9% in 2000 and 2.9% in 1999.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense was $46.4 in 2001, $49.9 in 2000 and $48.5 in 1999. Energizer strives
to maintain technological leadership in the primary battery business. Research and development costs were
slightly higher in 2000 and 1999 due to increased activity related to Energizer e2. As a percent of sales,
research and development expense was 2.7% in 2001 and 2.6% in 2000 and 1999.

Goodwill Impairment Charge

Energizer monitors changing business conditions, which may indicate that the remaining useful life of
goodwill and other intangible assets may warrant revision, or carrying amounts may require adjustment.
Continuing unfavorable business trends in Europe, and the unfavorable costs of U.S. dollar-based products
resulting from currency declines, represent such conditions. As part of its annual business planning cycle,
Energizer performed a thorough evaluation of its European business in the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001, which
resulted in an impairment charge for $119.0 of related goodwill. At September 30, 2001, the carrying amount
of goodwill related to Energizer's European business was $8.5.

Restructuring Charges

Energizer recorded restructuring charges each year from 1994 through 1999, and in 2001. These charges
included a reduction in carbon zinc plant capacity as demand for this type of battery continues to decline,
plant closures for the movement and consolidation of alkaline production to new or more eÇcient locations in
an eÅort to achieve lower product costs, and staÇng reorganizations and reductions in various world areas to
enhance management eÅectiveness and reduce overhead costs. A detailed discussion of such charges and
expenditures during 1999 through 2001 follows.

Because there continues to be a migration of consumer demand from carbon zinc to alkaline batteries, a
comprehensive study of Energizer's carbon zinc facilities to determine the optimum number of carbon zinc
manufacturing plants was completed in the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001. Energizer also reviewed its worldwide
operations in light of competitive market conditions and available technologies and techniques, and is
adjusting its organization accordingly. As a result, Energizer adopted restructuring plans to eliminate carbon
zinc capacity, and to reduce and realign certain selling, production, research and administrative functions. The
total cost associated with this plan is expected to be $35.6 before taxes, of which $29.8 ($19.4 after-taxes, or
$.21 per share) was recorded in the fourth quarter, with the remainder expected to be recorded in the Ñrst
quarter of Ñscal 2002.

These restructuring activities are expected to improve the Company's operating eÇciency, downsize and
centralize corporate functions, and decrease costs. The plans will result in the closure of one carbon zinc
production facility in South and Central America, and the severance of 570 employees, consisting of 375
production and 195 sales, research and administrative employees, primarily in the United States and South
and Central America.
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The program commenced in the fourth quarter of 2001 and is expected to be completed during the
second quarter of Ñscal year 2002. When the program is fully implemented, the annual pre-tax savings is
estimated to be $16.5, in Ñscal year 2002, the pre-tax savings is estimated to be $14.3.

The restructuring charges consist of non-cash Ñxed asset impairment charges of $11.1 for the closed
carbon zinc plant and production equipment, enhanced pension beneÑts for certain terminated U.S. employees
of $8.3, cash severance payments of $6.3, and other cash charges of $4.1.

During 1999, Energizer recorded net provisions for restructuring of $8.3 after-tax, or $9.9 pre-tax, $2.1 of
which represented inventory write-downs and is classiÑed as cost of products sold in the Consolidated
Statement of Earnings. Of the net pre-tax charge, $7.4 relates to the 1999 restructuring plans for the
elimination of certain production capacity in North America and in Asia.

The pre-tax charge of $7.4 for 1999 plans consisted of termination beneÑts of $3.2, other cash costs of $.2
and Ñxed asset impairments of $4.0. The Ñxed asset impairments primarily related to assets used for the
production of lithium coin cells in North America. These assets were idled and scrapped in 1999.

The 1999 restructuring plan provided for the termination of approximately 170 production and
administrative employees, and the closure of one plant in Asia. This plant closure was precipitated by the
Ñnancial problems in the Asian market, which resulted in contractions in battery markets in this area. All
actions associated with these charges were completed as of September 30, 2000.

The remaining $2.5 represented additional net provisions related to prior years' restructuring plans.
Additional termination beneÑts of $5.5 primarily represent enhanced severance related to a European plant
closing in the 1997 restructuring plan. Additional provisions for other cash costs of $1.8 were recorded for Ñxed
asset disposition costs for previously held-for-use assets related to the 1997 restructuring plan that were idled
and held for disposal. Other non-cash charges of $2.1 relate to inventory write-oÅs, which were more than
oÅset by a reclassiÑcation of $4.5 from other comprehensive income to net income of cumulative translation
adjustment for a subsidiary sold in connection with the 1997 plan. Also recorded in 1999 were asset proceeds
greater than anticipated of $5.4, related to 1994, 1995 and 1997 restructuring plans.

Annual pre-tax cost savings from the 1999 restructuring plans are as follows: $.3 in 2000 and $1.4
thereafter. Annual pre-tax cost savings from prior restructuring plans have been or are expected to be as
follows: $31.0 in 1999 and $36.0 thereafter.

As of September 30, 2001, except for the disposition of certain assets held for disposal, all activities
associated with the 1994 through 1999 restructuring plans are complete. The carrying value of assets held for
disposal under all restructuring plans was $2.6 at September 30, 2001.

Energizer expects to fund the remaining costs of these restructuring actions with funds generated from
operations.

See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a table that presents, by major cost component
and by year of provision, activity related to the restructuring charges discussed above during Ñscal years 2001,
2000 and 1999 including any adjustments to the original charges.

Intellectual Property Rights Income

In Ñscal 2001, Energizer recorded income of $20.0 pre-tax, or $12.3 after-tax, related to the licensing of
intellectual property rights.

Costs Related to Spin-oÅ

In Ñscal 2000, Energizer recorded one-time spin-related costs of $5.5 pre-tax, or $3.3 after-tax. These
costs include legal fees, charges related to the vesting of certain compensation beneÑts, and other costs
triggered by, or associated with, the spin-oÅ.
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Loss on Disposition of Spanish AÇliate

In Ñscal 2000, Energizer recorded a $15.7 pre-tax loss on the sale of its Spanish aÇliate prior to the spin-
oÅ. The loss was a non-cash write-oÅ of goodwill and cumulative translation accounts of the Spanish aÇliate.
Ralston recognized capital loss tax beneÑts related to the Spanish sale of $24.4, which are reÖected in
Energizer's historical Ñnancial statements and resulted in a net after-tax gain of $8.7 on the Spanish
transaction. Such capital loss beneÑts would not have been realized by Energizer on a stand-alone basis, thus
are not included in the Pro Forma Statement of Earnings for the year ended September 30, 2000, as presented
in Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest and Other Financial Items

Interest expense increased $5.9 in 2001 and $19.9 in 2000, reÖecting the cost of incremental debt
assumed by Energizer immediately prior to the spin-oÅ for a full year and for six months, respectively. Interest
expense for the last six months of 2001 declined $7.6 compared to the same six-month period in 2000, due to
lower average borrowings and lower interest rates.

Other Ñnancing-related costs increased $5.9 in 2001, reÖecting the discount on the sale of accounts
receivable under a Ñnancing arrangement and lower net exchange gains. Other Ñnancing-related costs
decreased $4.3 in 2000 compared to 1999, primarily due to lower foreign exchange losses, partially oÅset by
accounts receivable sales discounts.

Income Taxes

Income taxes, which include federal, state and foreign taxes, were 223.8%, 35.5% and 35.6% of earnings
from continuing operations before income taxes in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Earnings before income
taxes and income taxes include certain unusual items in all years, the most signiÑcant of which are described
below:

‚ In 2001, the provision for goodwill impairment of $119.0 has no associated tax beneÑt as the charge is
not deductible for tax purposes. The provisions for restructuring of $29.8 have an associated tax rate of
34.9%.

‚ In 2000, the income tax percentage was favorably impacted by the recognition of $24.4 U.S. capital
loss tax beneÑts related to the disposition of Energizer's Spanish aÇliate.

‚ Capital loss tax beneÑts of $16.6 were recognized in 1999 and were primarily related to prior years'
restructuring actions.

‚ In 1999, the income tax percentage was unfavorably impacted by pre-tax restructuring provisions that
did not result in tax beneÑts due to tax loss situations or particular statutes of a country.

Excluding unusual items, the income tax percentage was 45.7% in 2001, 41.8% in 2000 and 41.3% in
1999. The higher eÅective tax rate in 2001 reÖects pre-tax losses in foreign tax jurisdictions for which no tax
beneÑts were realized and goodwill charges for which there is no tax deduction. The year-over-year increase
was the result of the Ñxed dollar impact of these items being spread over a smaller earnings base.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Öows from continuing operations totaled $318.1 in 2001, $289.6 in 2000 and $337.2 in 1999. The
increase in cash Öows from continuing operations in 2001 was due primarily to signiÑcant inventory reduction
in 2001 compared to a signiÑcant inventory increase in 2000, and other working capital improvements in 2001,
partially oÅset by substantially lower cash earnings in 2001 and proceeds from sale of accounts receivable in
2000. The decrease in cash Öows from continuing operations in 2000 compared to 1999 was due primarily to
increased inventory levels and the realization of capital loss tax beneÑts in Ñscal 1999, partially oÅset by higher
cash earnings and proceeds from the sale of accounts receivable.
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Working capital was $288.1 and $401.7 at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Capital
expenditures totaled $77.9, $72.8 and $69.2 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. These expenditures were
funded by cash Öow from operations. Capital expenditures of approximately $50.0 are anticipated in 2002 and
are expected to be Ñnanced with funds generated from operations. Net transactions with Ralston, prior to the
spin-oÅ, resulted in cash usage of $210.7 and $293.7 in 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Immediately prior to the spin-oÅ, Ralston borrowed $478.0 through several interim-funding facilities and
assigned all repayment obligations of those facilities to Energizer. In April and May of 2000, Energizer
entered into separate Ñnancing agreements and repaid the interim funding facilities. Total long-term debt
outstanding of $225.0 at September 30, 2001 includes $50.0 of borrowings with a variable interest rate.
Energizer maintains total committed debt facilities of $625.0, of which $400.0 remained available as of
September 30, 2001.

Under the terms of the facilities, the ratio of Energizer's total indebtedness to its EBITDA cannot be
greater than 3 to 1 and the ratio of its EBIT to total interest expense must exceed 3 to 1. Energizer's ratio of
total indebtedness to EBITDA was 1.5 to 1 and the ratio of EBIT to total interest expense was 5 to 1 as of
September 30, 2001.

In Ñscal 2000, Energizer entered into an agreement to sell, on an ongoing basis, a pool of domestic trade
accounts receivable to a wholly owned bankruptcy-remote subsidiary of Energizer. Energizer received $100.0
of net proceeds from this arrangement in Ñscal 2000, which was used to repay interim funding facilities as
discussed above. Net proceeds received from this arrangement declined $13.8 in 2001 as a result of lower
qualifying accounts receivable. See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion
regarding the sale of accounts receivable.

In September 2000, Energizer's Board of Directors approved a share repurchase plan authorizing the
repurchase of up to 5 million shares of Energizer's common stock. As of September 30, 2001, approximately
3.8 million shares, or $79.6, of Energizer common stock had been purchased under the authorization. No
shares were purchased after Ñscal 2001 year-end.

Energizer believes that cash Öows from operating activities and periodic borrowings under existing credit
facilities will be adequate to meet short-term and long-term liquidity requirements prior to the maturity of
Energizer's credit facilities, although no guarantee can be given in this regard.

INFLATION

Management recognizes that inÖationary pressures may have an adverse eÅect on Energizer through
higher asset replacement costs and related depreciation, and higher material, labor and other costs. Energizer
tries to minimize these eÅects through cost reductions and productivity improvements as well as price
increases to maintain reasonable proÑt margins. It is management's view, however, that inÖation has not had a
signiÑcant impact on operations in the three years ended September 30, 2001.

SEASONAL FACTORS

Energizer's results are signiÑcantly impacted in the Ñrst quarter of the Ñscal year by the additional sales
volume associated with the December holiday season, particularly in North America. First quarter sales
accounted for 33%, 35% and 31% of total net sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The Ñrst quarter
percentage in 2000 was also higher due to Y2K-driven demand.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The operations of Energizer, like those of other companies engaged in the battery business, are subject to
various federal, state, foreign and local laws and regulations intended to protect the public health and the
environment. These regulations primarily relate to worker safety, air and water quality, underground fuel
storage tanks, and waste handling and disposal.
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Energizer has received notices from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, state agencies and/or
private parties seeking contribution, that it has been identiÑed as a ""potentially responsible party''
(PRP) under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act and may be
required to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to nine federal ""Superfund'' sites. It may also be required
to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to a state-designated site. Liability under the applicable federal and
state statutes which mandate cleanup is strict, meaning that liability may attach regardless of lack of fault, and
joint and several, meaning that a liable party may be responsible for all of the costs incurred in investigating
and cleaning up contamination at a site. However, liability in such matters is typically shared by all of the
Ñnancially viable responsible parties.

The amount of Energizer's ultimate liability in connection with those sites may depend on many factors,
including the volume and toxicity of material contributed to the site, the number of other PRPs and their
Ñnancial viability, and the remediation methods and technology to be used.

In addition, Energizer undertook certain programs to reduce or eliminate the environmental contamina-
tion at the rechargeable battery facility in Gainesville, Florida, which was divested in November 1999. In
2001, the buyer, as well as its operating subsidiary which owns and operates the Gainesville facility, Ñled
petitions in bankruptcy court. In the event that the buyer would become unable to continue such programs,
Energizer could be required to bear Ñnancial responsibility for such programs as well as for other known and
unknown environmental conditions at the site.

Many European countries, as well as the European Union, have been very active in adopting and
enforcing environmental regulations. In many developing countries in which Energizer operates, there has not
been signiÑcant governmental regulation relating to the environment, occupational safety, employment
practices or other business matters routinely regulated in the United States. As such economies develop, it is
possible that new regulations may increase the risk and expense of doing business in such countries.

It is diÇcult to quantify with certainty the potential Ñnancial impact of actions regarding expenditures for
environmental matters, particularly remediation, and future capital expenditures for environmental control
equipment. Nevertheless, based upon the information currently available, Energizer believes that its ultimate
liability arising from such environmental matters, taking into account established accruals of $5.9 at
September 30, 2001 for estimated liabilities, should not be material to its Ñnancial position. Such liability
could, however, be material to results of operations or cash Öows for a particular quarter or year.

MARKET RISK SENSITIVE INSTRUMENTS AND POSITIONS

The market risk inherent in Energizer's Ñnancial instruments and positions represents the potential loss
arising from adverse changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. The following risk
management discussion and the estimated amounts generated from the sensitivity analyses are forward-
looking statements of market risk assuming certain adverse market conditions occur.

Interest Rates

Energizer has interest rate risk with respect to interest expense on variable rate debt. At September 30,
2001 and 2000, Energizer had $160.3 and $330.0 variable rate debt outstanding. A hypothetical 10% adverse
change in all interest rates would have had an annual unfavorable impact of $.9 and $2.6 in 2001 and 2000,
respectively, on Energizer's earnings and cash Öows, based upon these year-end debt levels. The primary
interest rate exposures on variable rate debt are with respect to short-term local currency rates in certain Asian
and Latin American countries.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Energizer employs a foreign currency hedging strategy which focuses on mitigating potential losses in
earnings or cash Öows on foreign currency transactions, which primarily consist of anticipated intercompany
purchase transactions and intercompany borrowings. External purchase transactions and intercompany
dividends and service fees with foreign currency risk are also hedged from time to time. The primary
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currencies to which Energizer's foreign aÇliates are exposed include the U.S. dollar, the Euro and the British
pound, while domestic aÇliates are primarily exposed to the Swiss franc.

Energizer's hedging strategy involves the use of natural hedging techniques, where possible, such as the
oÅsetting or netting of like foreign currency cash Öows. Where natural hedging techniques are not possible,
foreign currency derivatives with a duration of generally one year or less may be used, including forward
exchange contracts, purchased put and call options, and zero-cost option collars. Energizer policy allows
foreign currency derivatives to be used only for identiÑable foreign currency exposures and, therefore,
Energizer does not enter into foreign currency contracts for trading purposes where the sole objective is to
generate proÑts. Energizer has not designated any Ñnancial instruments as hedges for accounting purposes in
the three years ended September 30, 2001.

Market risk of foreign currency derivatives is the potential loss in fair value of net currency positions for
outstanding foreign currency contracts at Ñscal year-end, resulting from a hypothetical 10% adverse change in
all foreign currency exchange rates. Market risk does not include foreign currency derivatives that hedge
existing balance sheet exposures, as any losses on these contracts would be fully oÅset by exchange gains on
the underlying exposures for which the contracts are designated as hedges. Accordingly, the market risk of
Energizer's foreign currency derivatives at September 30, 2001 and 2000 amounts to $1.9 and $2.6,
respectively.

Energizer generally views as long-term its investments in foreign subsidiaries with a functional currency
other than the U.S. dollar. As a result, Energizer does not generally hedge these net investments. Capital
structuring techniques are used to manage the net investment in foreign currencies as considered necessary.
Additionally, Energizer attempts to limit its U.S. dollar net monetary liabilities in currencies of hyperinÖation-
ary countries, primarily in Latin America. In terms of foreign currency translation risk, Energizer is exposed to
the Swiss franc and other European currencies; the Mexican and Argentine peso and other Latin American
currencies; and the Singapore dollar, Chinese renminbi, Australian and Hong Kong dollars, and other Asian
currencies. Energizer's net foreign currency investment in foreign subsidiaries and aÇliates translated into
U.S. dollars using year-end exchange rates was $329.2 and $515.1 at September 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The potential loss in value of Energizer's net foreign currency investment in foreign subsidiaries
resulting from a hypothetical 10% adverse change in quoted foreign currency exchange rates at September 30,
2001 and 2000 amounts to $32.9 and $51.5, respectively.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

See discussion in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Statements in the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition and other sections of this Annual Report to Shareholders that are not historical, particularly
statements regarding Energizer's commitment to maintaining technological leadership, the impact of Ener-
gizer's restructuring activity, the future adequacy of cash Öows and Energizer's ability to meet liquidity
requirements, the impact of inÖationary pressures, the impact of future expenditures for environmental
matters and equipment, the impact of adverse changes in interest rates, the market risk of foreign currency
derivatives, and the potential loss in value of Energizer's net foreign currency investment in foreign
subsidiaries, may be considered forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company cautions readers not to place undue reliance on any forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date made.

The Company advises readers that various risks and uncertainties could aÅect its Ñnancial performance
and could cause the Company's actual results for future periods to diÅer materially from those anticipated or
projected. The high cost of research and development activities, shifts in consumer demand from higher
quality to lower-priced batteries, and patented innovations by competitors, could aÅect the Company's
commitment or ability to maintain its technological leadership. Severance costs and other expenses associated
with current and proposed restructuring activity may be higher than anticipated, and there may be unknown
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expenses associated with these activities. In addition, expected improvements in operating eÇciency may not
materialize, and the cost reductions actually realized as a result of restructuring activity may be less signiÑcant
than anticipated. Unforeseen Öuctuations in levels of the Company's operating cash Öows, or inability to
maintain compliance with its debt covenants, could limit the Company's ability to meet future operating
expenses and liquidity requirements, fund capital expenditures or service its debt as it becomes due. The
current political and economic crisis could result in higher levels of inÖation than anticipated, and the
Company may not be able to realize cost reductions, productivity improvements or price increases which are
substantial enough to counter the inÖationary impact. Unknown environmental liabilities and greater than
anticipated remediation expenses or environmental control expenditures could have a material impact on the
Company's Ñnancial position. Economic turmoil and currency Öuctuations could increase the Company's risk
from unfavorable impacts on variable-rate debt, currency derivatives and other Ñnancial instruments, as well
as increase the potential loss in value of its net foreign currency investment in foreign subsidiaries. Additional
risks and uncertainties include those detailed from time to time in the Company's publicly Ñled documents,
including its Registration Statement on Form 10, as amended, and its Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 25, 2000.
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SUMMARY SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

For the Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Statement of Earnings Data

Net sales (a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,694.2 $1,927.7 $1,878.5 $1,930.7 $2,015.2

Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 79.8 82.0 94.9 101.2 112.3

Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes (b) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31.5 279.2 248.2 262.5 203.9

Income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70.5 99.0 88.4 54.3 44.6

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations (c) (39.0) 180.2 159.8 208.2 159.3

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (39.0) 181.4 80.0 164.7 159.8

Earnings/(loss) per share from
continuing operations:

Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.42) $ 1.88 $ 1.56 $ 2.05 $ 1.56

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.42) $ 1.87 $ 1.56 $ 2.05 $ 1.56

Average shares outstanding (d)

Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 92.6 96.1 102.6 101.6 102.1

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 94.1 96.3 102.6 101.6 102.1

September 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 288.1 $ 401.7 $ 478.1 $ 478.5 $ 489.6

Property at cost, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 476.1 485.4 472.8 476.9 494.2

Additions (during the period) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 77.9 72.8 69.2 102.8 98.8

Depreciation (during the period)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 58.6 57.9 68.4 74.1 79.5

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,497.6 1,793.5 1,833.7 2,077.6 2,113.6

Long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 225.0 370.0 1.9 1.3 21.3

(a) Certain reclassiÑcations have been made to comply with EITF 00-10, 00-14 and 00-25. See Note 2 for
further information.

(b) Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations before income taxes were (reduced)/increased due to the
following unusual items:

For the Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Intellectual property rights income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 20.0 $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì

Provision for goodwill impairment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (119.0) Ì Ì Ì Ì

Provisions for restructuring ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (29.8) Ì (9.9) (21.3) (83.7)

Loss on disposition of Spanish aÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (15.7) Ì Ì Ì

Costs related to spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (5.5) Ì Ì Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (128.8) $ (21.2) $ (9.9) $ (21.3) $ (83.7)
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(c) Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations were (reduced)/increased due to the following unusual
items:

For the Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Intellectual property rights income, net of
tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 12.3 $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì

Provision for goodwill impairment, net
of tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (119.0) Ì Ì Ì Ì

Provisions for restructuring, net of taxÏÏÏÏÏÏ (19.4) Ì (8.3) (12.8) (72.0)

Capital loss tax beneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 24.4 16.6 48.4 35.9

Foreign tax credit refundsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì 20.5

Loss on disposition of Spanish aÇliate, net
of tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (15.7) Ì Ì Ì

Costs related to spin-oÅ, net of tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (3.3) Ì Ì Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (126.1) $ 5.4 $ 8.3 $ 35.6 $ (15.6)

(d) Basic earnings per share for the current year is based on the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share for the current year is based on the weighted-
average number of shares used in the basic earnings per share calculation, adjusted for the dilutive eÅect
of stock options and restricted stock equivalents. Prior Ñscal years are based on the weighted-average
number of shares outstanding of Ralston common stock prior to the spin-oÅ, adjusted in Ñscal 2000 for
the distribution of one share of Energizer stock for each three shares of Ralston stock. In Ñscal 2001, the
potentially dilutive securities were not included in the dilutive earnings per share calculation due to their
anti-dilutive eÅect.
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation and integrity of the Ñnancial statements of Energizer Holdings, Inc. are the responsibility
of its management. These statements have been prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States, and in the opinion of management, fairly present Energizer's Ñnancial position,
results of operations and cash Öows.

Energizer maintains accounting and internal control systems, which it believes are adequate to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that the
Ñnancial records are reliable for preparing Ñnancial statements. The selection and training of qualiÑed
personnel, the establishment and communication of accounting and administrative policies and procedures,
and an extensive program of internal audits are important elements of these control systems.

The report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, on their audits of the accompany-
ing Ñnancial statements is shown below. This report states that the audits were made in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards in the United States. These standards include a study and evaluation of
internal control for the purpose of establishing a basis for reliance thereon relative to the scope of their audits
of the Ñnancial statements.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee consisting solely of nonmanagement directors,
meets periodically with management, internal audit and the independent accountants to discuss audit and
Ñnancial reporting matters. To assure independence, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has direct access to the
Audit Committee.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Energizer Holdings, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
earnings and comprehensive income, of cash Öows and of shareholders equity present fairly, in all material
respects, the Ñnancial position of Energizer Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries at September 30, 2001 and
2000, and the results of their operations and their cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These Ñnancial statements are the responsibility of Energizer's management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these Ñnancial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ñnancial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and signiÑcant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall Ñnancial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

St. Louis, Missouri
October 30, 2001
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999

Statement of Earnings:

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,694.2 $1,927.7 $1,878.5

Cost of products soldÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 999.1 1,044.0 1,059.5

Selling, general and administrative expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 320.3 344.8 368.4

Advertising and promotion expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 133.6 164.7 137.8

Research and development expenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 46.4 49.9 48.5

Provision for goodwill impairment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 119.0 Ì Ì

Provisions for restructuring ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 29.8 Ì 7.8

Intellectual property rights income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20.0) Ì Ì

Costs related to spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 5.5 Ì

Loss on disposition of Spanish aÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 15.7 Ì

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33.2 27.5 7.6

Other Ñnancing items, net (income)/expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.3 (3.6) 0.7

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31.5 279.2 248.2

Income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (70.5) (99.0) (88.4)

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (39.0) 180.2 159.8

Net loss from discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (5.6)

Net gain/(loss) on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1.2 (74.2)

Net Earnings/(Loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (39.0) $ 181.4 $ 80.0

Earnings Per Share:

Basic

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.42) $ 1.88 $ 1.56

Net loss from discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (0.06)

Net gain/(loss) on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 0.01 (0.72)

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.42) $ 1.89 $ 0.78

Diluted

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.42) $ 1.87 $ 1.56

Net loss from discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (0.06)

Net gain/(loss) on disposition of discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 0.01 (0.72)

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.42) $ 1.88 $ 0.78

Statement of Comprehensive Income:

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (39.0) $ 181.4 $ 80.0

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (8.6) (31.9) 7.8

Foreign currency reclassiÑcation adjustments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 9.7 (4.5)

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $.7 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (1.1) Ì

Comprehensive income/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (47.6) $ 158.1 $ 83.3

The above Ñnancial statement should be read in conjunction with the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

September 30,

2001 2000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 23.0 $ 11.9

Trade receivables, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 189.1 180.6

Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 361.3 459.1

Other current assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 209.9 278.7

Total current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 783.3 930.3

Property, plant and equipment, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 476.1 485.4

Other assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 238.2 377.8

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,497.6 $1,793.5

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Notes payableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 110.3 $ 135.0

Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 109.2 145.0

Other current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 275.7 248.6

Total current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 495.2 528.6

Long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 225.0 370.0

Other liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 169.5 156.7

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock Ó $.01 par value, none outstanding ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì

Common stock $.01 par value, issued 95,563,511 and 95,552,711 
at 2001 and 2000, respectively ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.0 1.0

Additional paid-in capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 784.1 783.9

Retained earningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 17.5 59.8

Common stock in treasury, at cost, 3,844,700 shares at 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (79.6) Ì

Accumulated other comprehensive incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (115.1) (106.5)

Total shareholders equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 607.9 738.2

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,497.6 $1,793.5

The above Ñnancial statement should be read in conjunction with the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in millions)

Year Ended September 30,

2001 2000 1999

Cash Flow from Operations
Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (39.0) $ 181.4 $ 80.0
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash Öow from operations:
Other non-cash charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 139.3 15.7 (2.2)
Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 79.8 82.0 94.9
Translation and exchange lossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.1 1.9 9.0
Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.3 5.9 70.4
Net (earnings)/loss from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (1.2) 79.8
Sale of accounts receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (13.8) 100.0 Ì
Changes in assets and liabilities used in operations:

(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2.7) (25.3) (6.4)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 90.2 (90.8) 22.1
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70.3 18.7 (13.9)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (27.3) 24.2 (21.3)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11.2 (16.8) 16.2

Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.7 (6.1) 8.6

Cash Öow from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 318.1 289.6 337.2
Cash Öow from discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 54.7 15.1

Net cash Öow from operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 318.1 344.3 352.3

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Property additionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (77.9) (72.8) (69.2)
Proceeds from sale of OEM businessÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 20.0 Ì
Proceeds from sale of assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10.8 3.2 1.4
Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8 (8.7) (0.5)

Cash used by investing activities from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (65.3) (58.3) (68.3)
Cash used by investing activities from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (0.7) (3.7)

Net cash used by investing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (65.3) (59.0) (72.0)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net cash proceeds from issuance of long-term debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 407.0 1.0
Principal payments on long-term debt (including current maturities) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (145.0) (449.5) (13.3)
Cash proceeds from issuance of notes payables with maturities greater than 

90 daysÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19.4 6.1 14.7
Cash payments on notes payables with maturities greater than 90 days ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (19.4) (3.7) (0.1)
Net increase/(decrease) in notes payable with maturities of 90 days or less ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20.1) (50.2) (12.0)
Purchase of treasury stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (79.6) Ì Ì
Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.2 Ì Ì
Net transactions with Ralston prior to spin-oÅÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (210.7) (293.7)

Net cash used by Ñnancing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (244.5) (301.0) (303.4)

EÅect of exchange rate changes on cash ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1.2) (0.2) 1.8

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.1 (15.9) (21.3)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11.9 27.8 49.1

Cash and cash equivalents, international month-lag elimination (Note 2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.0 Ì Ì

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 23.0 $ 11.9 $ 27.8

Non-cash transactions:
Debt assigned by Ralston ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $ 478.0 $ Ì

The above Ñnancial statement should be read in conjunction with the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
(Dollars in millions, shares in thousands)

Dollars Shares

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

(Dollars in millions, shares in thousands)

Ralston's net investment: ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $1,312.9 $1,531.3

Net earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 121.6 80.0

Net transactions with Ralston ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (732.8) (301.7)

Foreign currency translation adjustment Ì (1.4) 3.3

Distribution to Ralston's shareholders at
spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (700.3) Ì

Ending balanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $ Ì $1,312.9

Common Stock: ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.0 $ Ì $ Ì 95,553 Ì Ì

Distribution to Ralston's shareholders at
spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1.0 Ì Ì 95,553 Ì

Shares issued under stock plan activity ÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 11 Ì Ì

Ending balanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.0 $ 1.0 $ Ì 95,564 95,553 Ì

Additional paid in capital:ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 783.9 $ Ì $ Ì

Distribution to Ralston's shareholders at
spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 783.9 Ì

Shares issued under stock plan activity ÏÏ 0.2 Ì Ì

Ending balanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 784.1 $ 783.9 $ Ì

Retained earnings: ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 59.8 $ Ì $ Ì

Net earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (39.0) 59.8 Ì

Elimination of international one-month
lag (Note 2)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3.3) Ì Ì

Ending balanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 17.5 $ 59.8 $ Ì

Common stock in treasury: ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì Ì Ì Ì

Treasury stock purchased ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (79.6) Ì Ì (3,845) Ì Ì

Ending balanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (79.6) $ Ì $ Ì (3,845) Ì Ì

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Cumulative translation adjustment: ÏÏÏÏÏ $(105.4) $ Ì $ Ì

Distribution to Ralston's shareholders
at spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (84.6) Ì

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (8.6) (20.8) Ì

Ending balanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(114.0) $ (105.4) $ Ì

Minimum pension liability adjustment: ÏÏ $ (1.1) $ Ì $ Ì

Adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (1.1) Ì

Ending balanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (1.1) $ (1.1) $ Ì

Total accumulated other comprehensive
incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(115.1) $ (106.5) $ Ì

Total shareholders equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 607.9 $ 738.2 $1,312.9

The above Ñnancial statement should be read in conjunction with the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

(1) Basis of Presentation

On June 10, 1999, the Board of Directors of Ralston approved in principle a plan to spin oÅ its battery
business to the Ralston stockholders. In September 1999, Energizer Holdings, Inc. (""Energizer'') was
incorporated in Missouri as an indirect subsidiary of Ralston.

EÅective April 1, 2000, Energizer became an independent, publicly owned company as a result of the
distribution by Ralston of Energizer's $.01 par value common stock to the Ralston stockholders at a
distribution ratio of one for three (the spin-oÅ). Prior to the spin-oÅ, Energizer operated as a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ralston. Ralston received a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service stating the distribution
qualiÑed as a tax-free spin-oÅ.

Energizer is the world's largest publicly traded manufacturer of primary batteries and Öashlights and a
global leader in the dynamic business of providing portable power. Energizer manufactures and markets a
complete line of primary alkaline and carbon zinc batteries under the brands Energizer e2, Energizer and
Eveready, as well as miniature and rechargeable batteries, and Öashlights and other lighting products.
Energizer and its subsidiaries operate 22 manufacturing and packaging facilities in 15 countries on
four continents. Its products are marketed and sold in more than 140 countries primarily through a direct sales
force, and also through distributors, to mass merchandisers, wholesalers and other customers.

Financial statements as of and for periods after the spin-oÅ are presented on a consolidated basis. The
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended September 30, 2000 include the
combined results of operations of the Energizer businesses under Ralston for the six months prior to the spin-
oÅ and the consolidated results of operations of Energizer on a stand-alone basis for the six months ended
September 30, 2000. The Ñnancial statements for all periods prior to the spin-oÅ are presented on a combined
basis and reÖect periods during which the Energizer businesses operated as wholly owned subsidiaries of
Ralston. The Ñnancial information in these Ñnancial statements does not include certain expenses and
adjustments that would have been incurred had Energizer been a separate, independent company, and may not
necessarily be indicative of results that would have occurred had Energizer been a separate, independent
company during the periods presented or of future results of Energizer. See the pro forma statement of
earnings for the years ended September 30, 2000 and 1999 in Note 22.

(2) Summary of Accounting Policies

Energizer's signiÑcant accounting policies, which conform to generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States and are applied on a consistent basis among all years presented, except as indicated, are
described below.

Principles of Consolidation Ó These Ñnancial statements include the accounts of Energizer and its
majority-owned subsidiaries. All signiÑcant intercompany transactions are eliminated. Investments in aÇliated
companies, 20% through 50% owned, are carried at equity. Energizer historically reported results of
international operations on a one-month lag. As such, prior year amounts represent results of international
operations for September through August combined with the U.S. results for October through September.
Beginning in Ñscal 2001, Energizer synchronized international operations' reporting to be consistent with U.S.
reporting. As a result, the Ñscal 2000 loss from international operations of $3.3 was recorded directly to
retained earnings.

The eÅects of the change on the year ended September 30, 2000 are presented in Note 22. The eÅect of
the change is not signiÑcant to the balance sheet or cash Öow, and as a result, the September 30, 2000 balance
sheet and the cash Öow have not been adjusted.

Use of Estimates Ó The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Ñnancial
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could diÅer from those estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation Ó Financial statements of foreign operations where the local currency is the
functional currency are translated using end-of-period exchange rates for assets and liabilities and average
exchange rates during the period for results of operations. Related translation adjustments are reported as a
component within accumulated other comprehensive income in the shareholders equity section of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

For foreign operations where the U.S. dollar is the functional currency and for countries that are
considered highly inÖationary, translation practices diÅer in that inventories, properties, accumulated depreci-
ation and depreciation expense are translated at historical rates of exchange, and related translation
adjustments are included in earnings. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are generally
included in earnings.

Financial Instruments and Derivative Securities Ó Energizer uses Ñnancial instruments in the manage-
ment of foreign currency and interest rate risks that are inherent to its business operations. Such instruments
are not held or issued for trading purposes.

Foreign exchange (F/X) instruments, including currency forwards, purchased options and zero-cost
option collars, are used primarily to reduce transaction exposures associated with anticipated intercompany
purchases and intercompany borrowings and, to a lesser extent, to manage other transaction and translation
exposures. F/X instruments used are selected based on their risk reduction attributes and the related market
conditions. The terms of such instruments are generally 12 months or less.

For derivatives not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes, realized and unrealized
gains or losses from F/X instruments are recognized currently in selling, general and administrative expenses
or other Ñnancing items, net in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings. Energizer has not designated any
Ñnancial instruments as hedges for accounting purposes in the three years ended September 30, 2001.

Energizer adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, ""Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities'' (SFAS 133), and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 138, an amendment of SFAS 133, in the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2001. The implementation of this standard
did not have a material eÅect on its consolidated Ñnancial position or results of operations.

Cash Equivalents Ó For purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are
considered to be all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Inventories Ó Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost generally being determined
using average cost or the Ñrst-in, Ñrst-out (FIFO) method.

Capitalized Software Costs Ó Capitalized software costs are included in Other Assets. These costs are
amortized using the straight-line method over periods of related beneÑt ranging from two to seven years.

Property at Cost Ó Expenditures for new facilities and expenditures that substantially increase the useful
life of property, including interest during construction, are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs and minor
renewals are expensed as incurred. When property is retired or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and gains or losses on the disposition are reÖected
in earnings.

Depreciation Ó Depreciation is generally provided on the straight-line basis by charges to costs or
expenses at rates based on the estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives range from three to 30 years for
machinery and equipment and three to 50 years for buildings. Depreciation expense was $58.6, $57.9 and
$68.4 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Ó Amortization of goodwill, representing the excess of cost over the
net tangible assets of acquired businesses, is recorded on a straight-line basis primarily over a period of
25 years, with some amounts being amortized over 40 years. The cost to purchase or develop other intangible
assets, which consist primarily of patents, tradenames and trademarks, is amortized on a straight-line basis
over estimated periods of related beneÑt ranging from seven to 40 years.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Ó Energizer reviews long-lived assets, including goodwill and other
intangible assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the
remaining useful life may warrant revision or that the carrying amount of the long-lived asset may not be fully
recoverable. Energizer performs undiscounted cash Öow analyses to determine if impairment exists. If
impairment is determined to exist, any related impairment loss is calculated based on fair value. Impairment
losses on assets to be disposed of, if any, are based on the estimated proceeds to be received, less costs of
disposal.

Revenue Recognition Ó Revenue is recognized in accordance with terms of sale, which is generally upon
shipment of product to or upon receipt of product by customers. Energizer provides its customers a variety of
programs designed to promote sales of its products. Promotional payments and allowances that represent
primarily a reduction in price paid by either a retail customer, distributor, wholesaler or ultimate consumer are
recorded in net sales. The provision for doubtful accounts is included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Advertising and Promotion Costs Ó Energizer advertises and promotes its products through national and
regional media. Energizer expenses advertising and promotion in the year such costs are incurred. Due to the
seasonality of the business, with typically higher sales and volume during the holidays in the Ñrst quarter,
advertising and promotion costs incurred during interim periods are generally expensed ratably in relation to
revenues.

ReclassiÑcations Ó Certain reclassiÑcations have been made to the prior year Ñnancial statements to
conform to the current presentation.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Ó In 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (SFAS 141), ""Business Combinations.'' SFAS 141 requires that the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and establishes
speciÑc criteria for recognition of intangible assets separately from goodwill. For business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001, SFAS 141 also requires that unallocated negative goodwill be written oÅ
immediately as an extraordinary gain. Energizer is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 141 on its
Ñnancial statements.

Also in 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (SFAS 142),
""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.'' SFAS 142 eliminates the amortization of goodwill and instead
requires goodwill be tested for impairment annually at the reporting unit level. Also, intangible assets are
required to be amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for impairment in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards 121, ""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.'' Under SFAS 142, if the intangible asset has an indeÑnite useful life, it is not
amortized until its life is determined to be Ñnite. Energizer is required to adopt SFAS 142 no later than the
Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2003, but is permitted to adopt as of the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2002. Energizer is currently
evaluating the impact of SFAS 142 on its Ñnancial statements.

The FASB issued SFAS No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations'' (SFAS 143) in 2001.
SFAS 143 addresses Ñnancial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. Energizer is required to adopt SFAS 143
no later than the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2003, but is permitted to adopt earlier. Energizer is currently evaluating
the impact of SFAS 143 on its Ñnancial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

The FASB issued SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,''
which provides guidance on the accounting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. The provisions
of this statement are eÅective for Ñnancial statements issued for Ñscal years beginning after December 15,
2001, and interim periods within those Ñscal years, although early adoption is allowed. Energizer is currently
evaluating the impact of SFAS 144 on its Ñnancial statements.

The Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF 00-10, ""Accounting for Shipping and Handling
Fees and Costs,'' which provides guidance on earnings statement classiÑcation of amounts billed to customers
for shipping and handling. Energizer adopted EITF 00-10 in its fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001. ReclassiÑcations
were necessary from net sales to cost of products sold and were $34.4, $36.1 and $32.7 for 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. In addition, warehousing costs in selling, general and administrative expense of $31.1, $33.2
and $28.9 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, were reclassiÑed to cost of products sold. There was no impact
to net earnings.

The EITF also issued EITF 00-14 and 00-25. EITF 00-14, ""Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,''
provides guidance on accounting for discounts, coupons, rebates and free product. EITF 00-25, ""Vendor
Income Statement Characterization of Consideration from a Vendor to a Retailer,'' provides guidance on
accounting for considerations other than those directly addressed in EITF 00-14. Energizer adopted
EITF 00-14 and 00-25 in its fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001. ReclassiÑcations were necessary from advertising
and promotion expense to net sales and were $28.3, $22.7 and $26.5 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
There was no impact to net earnings.

(3) Related Party Activity

Cash Management Ó Prior to the spin-oÅ, Energizer participated in a centralized cash management
system administered by Ralston. Cash deposits from Energizer were transferred to Ralston on a daily basis and
Ralston funded Energizer's disbursement bank accounts as required. Unpaid balances of checks were included
in accounts payable. No interest was charged or credited on transactions with Ralston.

Shared Services Ó Energizer and Ralston have entered into a Bridging Agreement under which Ralston
has continued to provide certain general and administrative services to Energizer, including systems, beneÑts
and advertising. Ralston also provided facilities for Energizer's headquarters through July 31, 2001, when
Energizer relocated its headquarters. Prior to the spin-oÅ, the expenses related to shared services listed above,
as well as legal and Ñnancial support services, were allocated to Energizer generally based on utilization, which
management believes to be reasonable. Costs of these shared services charged to Energizer were $9.6 and
$20.0 for the six months ended March 31, 2000, and year ended September 30, 1999, respectively.

Ralston's Net Investment Ó Included in Ralston's Net Investment are cumulative translation adjustments
for non-hyperinÖationary countries of $84.6 as of March 31, 2000 representing net devaluation of currencies
relative to the U.S. dollar over the period of investment. Also included in Ralston's Net Investment are
accounts payable and receivable between Energizer and Ralston.

(4) Discontinued Operations

On November 1, 1999, the OEM business was sold to Moltech Corporation for approximately $20.0. This
segment is accounted for as a discontinued operation in Energizer's consolidated Ñnancial statements.

In Ñscal 2000, Energizer recognized an after-tax gain of $1.2 on the disposition of discontinued operations
related to the Ñnal settlement of the sale transaction.

Included in the Ñscal year 1999 Net Loss on Disposition of Discontinued Operations are estimated
operating losses during the divestment period of $15.0 pre-tax, or $9.6 after-tax, and a loss on disposition of
$95.6 pre-tax, or $64.6 after-tax. Actual pre-tax operating losses during the divestment period through
September 30, 1999 totaled $12.5.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

The Investment in Discontinued Operations at September 30, 1999 was primarily comprised of Ñxed
assets, inventory and accounts receivable and payable. Results for discontinued operations for 1999 were as
follows: net sales, $64.2; loss before income taxes, $9.0; income tax beneÑt, $3.4; and net loss from
discontinued operations, $5.6.

(5) Restructuring Activities

Because there continues to be a migration of consumer demand from carbon zinc to alkaline batteries, a
comprehensive study of Energizer's carbon zinc facilities to determine the optimum number of carbon zinc
manufacturing plants was completed in the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001. Energizer also reviewed its worldwide
operations in light of competitive market conditions and available technologies and techniques, and is
adjusting its organization accordingly. As a result, Energizer adopted restructuring plans to eliminate carbon
zinc capacity, and to reduce and realign certain selling, production, research and administrative functions. The
total cost associated with this plan is expected to be $35.6 before taxes, of which $29.8, or $19.4 after-tax, was
recorded in the fourth quarter, with the remainder expected to be recorded in the Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2002.

These restructuring activities are expected to improve the Company's operating eÇciency, downsize and
centralize corporate functions, and decrease costs. The plans will result in the closure of one carbon zinc
production facility in South and Central America, and the severance of 570 employees, consisting of
375 production and 195 sales, research and administrative employees, primarily in the United States and
South and Central America.

The restructuring charges consist of non-cash Ñxed asset impairment charges of $11.1 for the closed
carbon zinc plant and production equipment, enhanced pension beneÑts for certain terminated U.S. employees
of $8.3, cash severance payments of $6.3, and other cash charges of $4.1.

During 1999, Energizer recorded net provisions for restructuring of $8.3 after-tax, or $9.9 pre-tax, $2.1 of
which represented inventory write-downs and is classiÑed as cost of products sold in the Consolidated
Statement of Earnings. Of the net pre-tax charge, $7.4 relates to the 1999 restructuring plans for the
elimination of certain production capacity in North America and in Asia.

The pre-tax charge of $7.4 for 1999 plans consisted of termination beneÑts of $3.2, other cash costs of $.2
and Ñxed asset impairments of $4.0. The Ñxed asset impairments primarily relate to assets used for the
production of lithium coin cells in North America. These assets were idled and scrapped in 1999.

The 1999 restructuring plan provided for the termination of approximately 170 production and
administrative employees and the closure of one plant in Asia. This plant closure was precipitated by the
Ñnancial problems in the Asian market, which resulted in contractions in battery markets in this area. All
actions associated with these charges were completed as of September 30, 2000.

The remaining $2.5 represented additional net provisions related to prior years' restructuring plans.
Additional termination beneÑts of $5.5 primarily represent enhanced severance related to a European plant
closing in the 1997 restructuring plan. Additional provisions for other cash costs of $1.8 were recorded for Ñxed
asset disposition costs for previously held-for-use assets related to the 1997 restructuring plan that were idled
and held for disposal. Other non-cash charges of $2.1 relate to inventory write-oÅs, which were more than
oÅset by a reclassiÑcation of $4.5 from other comprehensive income to net income of cumulative translation
adjustment for a subsidiary sold in connection with the 1997 plan. Also recorded in 1999 were asset proceeds
greater than anticipated of $5.4, related to 1994, 1995 and 1997 restructuring plans.

As of September 30, 2001, except for the disposition of certain assets held for disposal, all activities
associated with the 1994 through 1999 restructuring plans are complete. The carrying value of assets held for
disposal under all restructuring plans was $2.6 at September 30, 2001.
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The following table presents, by major cost component and by year of provision, activity related to the
restructuring charges discussed above during Ñscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999, including any adjustments to
the original charges.

1999 Rollforward 2000 Rollforward 2001 Rollforward

Beginning Provision/ Ending Beginning Provision/ Ending Beginning Provision/ Ending
Balance (Reversals) Activity Balance Balance (Reversals) Activity Balance Balance (Reversals) Activity Balance

Prior Plans

Termination
benefits ÏÏÏÏÏÏ $33.9 $ 6.4 $(34.6) $ 5.7 $ 5.7 $ Ì $(5.7) $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì

Other cash costs 7.1 2.3 (4.5) 4.9 4.9 Ì (1.0) 3.9 3.9 Ì (3.9) Ì

Fixed asset
impairments ÏÏ Ì (5.4) 5.4 Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì

Other non-cash
charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (0.8) 0.8 Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 41.0 2.5 (32.9) 10.6 10.6 Ì (6.7) 3.9 3.9 Ì (3.9) Ì

1999 Plan

Termination
benefits ÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 3.2 (2.5) 0.7 0.7 Ì (0.7) Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì

Other cash costs Ì 0.2 (0.2) Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì

Fixed asset
impairments ÏÏ Ì 4.0 (4.0) Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 7.4 (6.7) 0.7 0.7 Ì (0.7) Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì

2001 Plan

Termination
benefits ÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 14.6 (9.3) 5.3

Other cash costs Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 4.1 (0.2) 3.9

Fixed asset
impairments ÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 11.1 (11.1) Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 29.8 (20.6) 9.2

Grand Total $41.0 $ 9.9 $(39.6) $11.3 $11.3 $ Ì $(7.4) $3.9 $3.9 $29.8 $(24.5) $9.2

(6) Europe Goodwill

Energizer monitors changing business conditions, which may indicate that the remaining useful life of
goodwill and other intangible assets may warrant revision or carrying amounts may require adjustment.
Continuing unfavorable business trends in Europe, and the unfavorable costs of U.S. dollar-based products
resulting from currency declines, represent such conditions. As part of its annual business planning cycle,
Energizer performed a thorough evaluation of its European business in the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2001, which
resulted in a provision for goodwill impairment of $119.0. As of September 30, 2001, the remaining carrying
amount of goodwill related to Energizer's European business after the provision for impairment was $8.5.
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(7) Income Taxes

Prior to spin-oÅ, U.S. income tax payments, refunds, credits, provision and deferred tax components have
been allocated to Energizer in accordance with Ralston's tax allocation policy. Such policy allocates tax
components included in the consolidated income tax return of Ralston to Energizer to the extent such
components were generated by or related to Energizer. Subsequent to the spin-oÅ, taxes are provided on a
stand-alone basis.

Had the Energizer tax provision been calculated as if Energizer was a separate, independent U.S.
taxpayer, the income tax provision would have been higher by approximately $23.4 in 2000. The higher
provision is due primarily to the $24.4 of capital loss beneÑts that would not be realized on a stand-alone basis.

The provisions for income taxes consisted of the following for the years ended September 30:

2001 2000 1999

Continuing Continuing
Consolidated Operations Total Operations Total

Currently payable:

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $42.8 $47.5 $45.2 $(17.5) $(27.0)

State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.4 9.0 8.7 7.9 8.6

Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22.0 36.6 36.6 27.6 27.8

Total current ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70.2 93.1 90.5 18.0 9.4

Deferred:

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.2 1.2 1.2 68.6 39.1

State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.1 0.2 0.2 (0.5) (2.2)

Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1.0) 4.5 4.5 2.3 2.3

Total deferredÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.3 5.9 5.9 70.4 39.2

Provision for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $70.5 $99.0 $96.4 $ 88.4 $ 48.6

The source of pre-tax earnings was:

2001 2000 1999

Continuing Continuing
Consolidated Operations Total Operations Total

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $118.2 $201.9 $200.5 $197.2 $ 75.4

Foreign ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (86.7) 77.3 77.3 51.0 53.3

Pre-tax earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 31.5 $279.2 $277.8 $248.2 $128.7
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A reconciliation of income taxes with the amounts computed at the statutory federal rate follows:

2001 2000 1999

Computed tax at federal statutory rate ÏÏÏÏÏ $ 11.0 35.0% $ 97.7 35.0% $ 86.9 35.0%

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 3.9 12.4 6.0 2.1 4.8 1.9

Foreign tax in excess of domestic rateÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.9 18.6 3.8 1.4 3.3 1.3

Taxes on repatriation of foreign earnings ÏÏÏ 5.2 16.5 6.4 2.3 7.8 3.1

Foreign sales corporation beneÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1.2) (3.8) (2.0) (0.7) (1.7) (0.7)

Nondeductible goodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.1 13.0 5.2 1.9 5.5 2.2

Provision for goodwill impairment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 41.7 132.4 Ì Ì Ì Ì

Net tax beneÑt on sale of Spanish aÇliate in
excess of federal rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (18.9) (6.7) Ì Ì

Recognition of U.S. capital losses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì (16.6) (6.6)

Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (0.1) (0.3) 0.8 0.2 (1.6) (0.6)

$ 70.5 223.8% $ 99.0 35.5% $ 88.4 35.6%

In 2001, Energizer recorded a provision for goodwill impairment of $119.0, for which there is no
associated tax provision or beneÑt. See further discussion in Note 6.

In 2000, Energizer recorded U.S. capital loss tax beneÑts of $24.4 related to the sale of Energizer's
Spanish aÇliate. Energizer recognized capital loss tax beneÑts of $16.6 in 1999, primarily related to past
restructuring actions. The capital loss beneÑts are not recognized in Energizer's pro forma Ñnancial results
(see Note 22), as Energizer would not have been able to realize these beneÑts on a stand-alone basis.

The eÅective tax rate for discontinued operations is higher than the federal statutory rate in 1999 due to
state income taxes.

The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recorded on the balance sheet as of September 30 are
as follows:

2001 2000

Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and property diÅerences ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (61.1) $(61.1)

Pension plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (38.4) (31.9)

Other tax liabilities, non-current ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (10.3) (6.1)

Gross deferred tax liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (109.8) (99.1)

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 58.8 51.8

Tax loss carryforwards and tax creditsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28.6 25.6

Intangible assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 42.7 42.6

Postretirement beneÑts other than pensions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 35.3 28.8

Inventory diÅerences ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.0 5.2

Other tax assets, non-current ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.5 8.8

Gross deferred tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 176.9 162.8

Valuation allowanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (35.1) (31.1)

Net deferred tax assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 32.0 $ 32.6
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Total deferred tax assets and liabilities shown above include current and non-current amounts.

Tax loss carryforwards of $1.4 expired in 2001. Future expiration of tax loss carryforwards and tax credits,
if not utilized, are as follows: 2002, $1.6; 2003, $4.2; 2004, $4.6; 2005, $3.5; 2006, $2.2; thereafter or no
expiration, $12.5. The valuation allowance is primarily attributed to certain accrued liabilities, tax loss
carryforwards and tax credits outside the United States. The valuation allowance increased $4.0 in 2001
primarily due to losses in certain foreign subsidiaries for which no tax beneÑt is expected to be realized.

At September 30, 2001, approximately $52.8 of foreign subsidiary net earnings was considered
permanently invested in those businesses. Accordingly, U.S. income taxes have not been provided for such
earnings. It is not practicable to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liabilities associated with
such earnings.

(8) Earnings Per Share

For Ñscal 2001, basic earnings per share is based on the average number of shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share is based on the average number of shares used for the basic earnings per
share calculation, adjusted for the dilutive eÅect of stock options and restricted stock equivalents. In Ñscal
2001, the potentially dilutive securities were not included in the dilutive earnings per share calculation due to
their anti-dilutive eÅect.

Earnings per share has been calculated using Energizer's historical basis earnings for the Ñscal 2000 and
1999. For the year ended September 30, 2000, the number of shares used to compute basic earnings per share
is based on the weighted-average number of shares of Ralston stock outstanding during the six months ended
March 31, 2000 (adjusted for the distribution of one share of Energizer stock for each three shares of Ralston
stock) and the weighted-average number of shares of Energizer stock outstanding from April 1, 2000 to
September 30, 2000. For the year ended September 30, 1999, the number of shares used to compute earnings
per share is based on the weighted-average number of shares of Ralston stock outstanding during the period,
adjusted for the distribution of one share of Energizer stock for each three shares of Ralston stock.
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

For the Year Ended
September 30,

2001 2000 1999

Numerator

Numerator for basic and dilutive earnings per share Ó

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(39.0) $180.2 $159.8

Net loss from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (5.6)

Net gain/(loss) on disposition of discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1.2 (74.2)

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(39.0) $181.4 $ 80.0

Denominator

Denominator for basic earnings per share Ó

Weighted-average shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 92.6 96.1 102.6

EÅect of dilutive securities

Stock optionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.0 0.1 Ì

Restricted stock equivalentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.5 0.1 Ì

1.5 0.2 Ì

Denominator for dilutive earnings per share Ó

Weighted-average shares and assumed conversions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 94.1 96.3 102.6

Basic earnings per share

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.42) $ 1.88 $ 1.56

Net loss from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (0.06)

Net gain/(loss) on disposition of discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 0.01 (0.72)

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.42) $ 1.89 $ 0.78

Diluted earnings per share

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.42) $ 1.87 $ 1.56

Net loss from discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (0.06)

Net gain/(loss) on disposition of discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 0.01 (0.72)

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.42) $ 1.88 $ 0.78

(9) Stock-Based Compensation

Energizer's 2000 Incentive Stock Plan (the Plan) was adopted by the Board of Directors in March 2000
and approved by shareholders, with respect to future awards which may be granted under the Plan, at the 2001
Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Under the Plan, awards to purchase shares of Energizer's common stock
(ENR stock) may be granted to directors, oÇcers and key employees. A maximum of 15.0 million shares of
ENR stock was approved to be issued under the Plan. At September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively, there
were 6.6 million and 7.0 million shares available for future awards.

Options which have been granted under the Plan have been granted at the market price on the grant date
and generally vest ratably over four or Ñve years. Awards have a maximum term of 10 years.

Restricted stock and restricted stock equivalent awards may also be granted under the Plan. During 2000,
the Board of Directors approved the grants of up to 635,000 restricted stock equivalents to a group of key
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employees and directors upon their purchase of an equal number of shares of Energizer (ENR) stock within a
speciÑed period. The restricted stock equivalents will vest three years from their respective dates of grant and
will convert into unrestricted shares of ENR stock at that time or, at the recipient's election, will convert at the
time of the recipient's retirement or other termination of employment. During Ñscal 2001 and 2000,
respectively, 120,885 and 488,415 restricted stock equivalents had been granted. The weighted-average fair
value for restricted stock equivalents granted in 2001 and 2000 was $19.94 and $18.30, respectively.

Under the terms of the Plan, option shares and prices, and restricted stock and stock equivalent awards,
are adjusted in conjunction with stock splits and other recapitalizations so that the holder is in the same
economic position before and after these equity transactions.

Energizer also permits deferrals of bonus and salary, and, for directors, retainers and fees, under the terms
of its Deferred Compensation Plan. Under this plan, employees or directors deferring amounts into the
Energizer Common Stock Unit Fund are credited with a number of stock equivalents based on the fair value
of ENR stock at the time of deferral. In addition, during 2000, they were credited with an additional number
of stock equivalents equal to 25% for employees, and 331/3% for directors, of the amount deferred. This
additional company match vests immediately for directors and three years from the date of initial crediting for
employees. Amounts deferred into the Energizer Common Stock Unit Fund, and vested company matching
deferrals, may be transferred to other investment options oÅered under the plan. At the time of termination of
employment, or for directors, at the time of termination of service on the Board, or at such other time for
distribution which may be elected in advance by the participant, the number of equivalents then credited to
the participant's account is determined and then an amount in cash equal to the fair value of an equivalent
number of shares of ENR stock is paid to the participant.

Energizer applies APB 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based compensation.
Accordingly, charges to earnings for stock-based compensation were $4.1 and $4.8 in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Had cost for stock-based compensation been determined based on the fair value method set forth
under SFAS 123, Energizer's net earnings and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma
amounts indicated in the table below. Pro forma amounts are for disclosure purposes only and may not be
representative of future calculations.

2001 2000

Net earnings/(loss):

As reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(39.0) $181.4

Pro forma ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(45.7) $176.1

Basic earnings/(loss) per share:

As reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.42) $ 1.89

Pro forma ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.49) $ 1.83

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share:

As reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.42) $ 1.88

Pro forma ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.49) $ 1.83

The weighted-average fair value from options granted in Ñscal 2001 and 2000 was $7.51 and $7.13 per
option, respectively. This was estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with
the following weighted-average assumptions:

2001 2000

Risk-free interest rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.90% 5.85%

Expected life of option ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.5 years 7.5 years

Expected volatility of ENR stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19.28% 20.30%

Expected dividend yield on ENR stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì% Ì%
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A summary of nonqualiÑed ENR stock options outstanding is as follows (shares in millions):

2001 2000

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding on October 1, ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.37 $17.41 Ì $ Ì

GrantedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.38 20.30 7.37 17.41

ExercisedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (0.01) 17.00 Ì Ì

Cancelled ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (0.03) 20.00 Ì Ì

Outstanding on September 30, ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.71 17.54 7.37 17.41

Exercisable on September 30, ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.62 $17.43 Ì $ Ì

The weighted-average remaining contractual life for both the shares outstanding and exercisable at
September 30, 2001 was 8.7 years.

(10) Pension Plans and Other Postretirement BeneÑts

Energizer has several deÑned beneÑt pension plans covering substantially all of its employees in the
United States and certain employees in other countries. The plans provide retirement beneÑts based on years
of service and earnings.

Energizer also sponsors or participates in a number of other non-U.S. pension arrangements, including
various retirement and termination beneÑt plans, some of which are required by local law or coordinated with
government-sponsored plans, which are not signiÑcant in the aggregate and therefore are not included in the
information presented below.

Energizer currently provides other postretirement beneÑts, consisting of health care and life insurance
beneÑts for certain groups of retired employees. Retiree contributions for health care beneÑts are adjusted
periodically, as total costs of the program change. In prior years, Energizer has increased its contributions for
health care beneÑts to partially mitigate the impact of increased medical costs to eligible retirees, although
there is no requirement in Energizer's retiree health plan to do so. The beneÑt obligation as of the beginning of
2001 and prior is computed assuming such increases continue in the future. In 2001, the plan was amended
such that there will not be an increase in the Energizer's contribution rate beyond the level of subsidy to be
provided for calendar 2002. The impact of this amendment was a reduction of the projected beneÑt obligation
of $39.4.

Prior to the spin-oÅ, Energizer employees participated in Ralston's deÑned beneÑt plans. In addition,
certain groups of retirees and management employees were eligible for certain postretirement beneÑts
provided by Ralston.
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The following tables present the beneÑt obligation and funded status of the plans for the periods
subsequent to the spin-oÅ.

September 30,

Pension Postretirement

2001 2000 2001 2000

Change in BeneÑt Obligation:

BeneÑt obligation at beginning of year (1)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $351.6 $345.6 $ 83.7 $77.6

Service costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 16.6 7.8 0.2 0.1

Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24.5 11.8 6.1 2.8

Plan participants' contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.5 0.2 Ì Ì

Actuarial (gain)/lossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20.3 (1.3) 5.8 4.2

BeneÑts paidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (18.4) (10.0) (1.8) (1.0)

Foreign currency exchange rate changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.0 (7.0) (0.2) Ì

Special termination beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.3 Ì Ì Ì

AmendmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 4.5 (39.4) Ì

BeneÑt obligation at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $405.4 $351.6 $ 54.4 $83.7

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year (1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $557.7 $558.9 $ 1.9 $ 1.7

Actual return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (49.0) 16.6 0.4 0.2

Company contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.6 1.2 1.8 1.0

Plan participants' contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.5 0.2 2.0 1.0

BeneÑts paidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (18.4) (10.0) (3.8) (2.0)

Foreign currency exchange rate changes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.0 (9.2) Ì Ì

Fair value of plan assets at end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $495.4 $557.7 $ 2.3 $ 1.9

(1) For Ñscal 2000, the beneÑt obligation and fair value of plan assets are as of April 1, 2000, the date of the
spin-oÅ from Ralston.

September 30,

Pension Postretirement

2001 2000 2001 2000

Funded Status:

Funded status of the plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 90.0 $206.1 $(52.1) $(81.8)

Unrecognized net loss/(gain)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.7 (113.0) 3.1 (2.3)

Unrecognized prior service cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.2 0.4 (42.7) (3.6)

Unrecognized net transition assetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.3 1.1 Ì Ì

Prepaid/(accrued) beneÑt costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 98.2 $ 94.6 $(91.7) $(87.7)

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:

Prepaid beneÑt cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $106.2 $102.0 $ Ì $ Ì

Accrued beneÑt liability ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (10.0) (9.4) (91.7) (87.7)

Intangible assetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.2 0.2 Ì Ì

Accumulated other comprehensive incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.8 1.8 Ì Ì

Net amount recognized ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 98.2 $ 94.6 $(91.7) $(87.7)
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For pension plans with accumulated beneÑt obligations in excess of plan assets, the projected beneÑt
obligation was $10.0 and $9.4 at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. There are no plan assets for these
nonqualiÑed plans as of September 30, 2001.

Pension assets consist primarily of listed common stocks and bonds. The U.S. plan held 1.7 million shares
of ENR stock in both 2001 and 2000. The market values of such stock was $28.8 and $42.4, at September 30,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

The following table presents pension and postretirement expense for Ñscal 2001 and the period
subsequent to the spin-oÅ (six months ended September 30, 2000).

September 30,

Pension Postretirement

2001 2000 2001 2000

Service costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 16.6 $ 7.8 $ 0.2 $ 0.1

Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24.5 11.8 6.1 2.8

Expected return on plan assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (46.9) (22.4) Ì Ì

Amortization of unrecognized prior service costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (0.3) (0.1)

Amortization of unrecognized transition asset ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.3 0.1 Ì Ì

Recognized net actuarial/(gain) lossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3.3) (1.5) Ì Ì

Net periodic beneÑt cost/(income)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (8.8) $ (4.2) $ 6.0 $ 2.8

The following table presents assumptions, which reÖect weighted-averages for the component plans, used
in determining the above information.

Pension Postretirement

2001 2000 2001 2000

Discount rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.6% 6.7% 7.0% 7.0%

Expected return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.7% 8.7% Ì Ì

Compensation increase rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.2% 5.2% Ì Ì

Assumed health care cost trend rates have been used in the valuation of postretirement health insurance
beneÑts as of 2000 and for the beginning of the 2001 valuation. The trend rate used for those periods was 6.5%.
As of September 30, 2001, cost trend rates will no longer materially impact the plan.

Pre-Spin Pension Plans and Other Postretirement BeneÑts

Prior to the spin-oÅ, Energizer participated in Ralston's noncontributory deÑned beneÑt pension plans
(Plans), which covered substantially all regular employees in the United States and certain employees in other
countries. In Ñscal 1999, Ralston amended the qualiÑed U.S. Pension Plan to allow employees to make an
irrevocable election eÅective January 1, 1999 between two pension beneÑt formulas. Prior to this time, one
beneÑt formula was used. Also eÅective January 1, 1999, assets of the Plan provide employee beneÑts in
addition to normal retirement beneÑts. The additional beneÑt was equal to a 300% match on participants'
after-tax contributions of 1% or 1.75% to the Savings Investment Plan. The cost of the Plans allocated to
Energizer was based on Energizer's percentage of the total liability of the Plans, as shown in the table below.

Prior to the spin-oÅ, Ralston provided health care and life insurance beneÑts for certain groups of retired
Energizer employees. The cost of these beneÑts was allocated to Energizer based on Energizer's percentage of
the total liability related to these beneÑts. Ralston also sponsored plans whereby certain management
employees could defer compensation for cash beneÑts after retirement. The cost of these postretirement
beneÑts is shown in the table below.
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The following table presents the net expense/(income) allocated to Energizer for the respective plans
prior to the spin-oÅ.

2000 1999

DeÑned beneÑt plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(2.1) $5.2

Postretirement beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.3 5.8

(11) DeÑned Contribution Plan

Energizer sponsors employee savings plans, which cover substantially all U.S. employees. Energizer
matches 50% of participants' before-tax contributions up to 6% of compensation. In addition, participants can
make after-tax contributions of 1% of compensation into the savings plan. This participant after-tax
contribution is matched within the pension plan at 325%. Amounts charged to expense during Ñscal 2001 were
$3.8. Subsequent to the spin-oÅ from Ralston, Energizer charged $1.8 to expense in Ñscal 2000.

Prior to the spin-oÅ, substantially all regular Energizer employees in the United States were eligible to
participate in the Ralston-sponsored deÑned contribution plans. Participant contributions were matched in
accordance with Ralston's plan terms. Prior to the spin-oÅ, Energizer recorded costs as allocated by Ralston.
The amount of such costs was $1.2 for the six months ended March 31, 2000 and $3.0 in 1999.

(12) Debt

Immediately prior to the spin-oÅ, Ralston borrowed $478.0 through several interim-funding facilities and
assigned all repayment obligations of those facilities to Energizer. In April and May 2000, Energizer entered
into separate Ñnancing agreements, including an agreement to sell domestic trade receivables as discussed in
Note 13 below, and repaid the interim-funding facilities.

Notes payable at September 30, 2001 and 2000 consisted of notes payable to Ñnancial institutions with
original maturities of less than one year of $110.3 and $135.0, respectively, and had a weighted-average
interest rate of 6.9% and 7.9%, respectively.

The detail of long-term debt at September 30 is as follows.

2001 2000

Private Placement, interest rates ranging from 7.8% to 8.0%, due 2003 to 2010 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $175.0 $175.0

Revolving Credit Facility, interest rate 3.7%, due 2006ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50.0 195.0

225.0 370.0

Less current portionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì

Total long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $225.0 $370.0

Energizer maintains total committed long-term debt facilities of $625.0, of which $400.0 remained
available as of September 30, 2001.

Under the terms of the facilities, the ratio of Energizer's total indebtedness to its EBITDA cannot be
greater than 3 to 1 and the ratio of its EBIT to total interest expense must exceed 3 to 1.

Aggregate maturities on all long-term debt are as follows: $15.0 in 2003, $160.0 in 2005 and $50.0
thereafter.

(13) Sale of Accounts Receivable

Energizer entered into an agreement to sell, on an ongoing basis, a pool of domestic trade accounts
receivable to a wholly owned bankruptcy-remote subsidiary of Energizer. The subsidiary qualiÑes as a Special
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Purpose Entity (SPE) for accounting purposes and is therefore not consolidated for Ñnancial reporting
purposes. The SPE's sole purpose is the acquisition of receivables from Energizer and the sale of its interests
in the receivables to a multi-seller receivables securitization company. Energizer's investment in the SPE is
classiÑed as Other Current Assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as disclosed below.

The activity related to the SPE at September 30, is presented in the table below. The net proceeds of the
transaction were used to reduce various debt instruments. The proceeds are reÖected as operating cash Öows in
Energizer's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

As of September 30,

2001 2000

Total outstanding accounts receivable sold to SPE ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $184.1 $257.1

Cash received by SPE from sale of receivables to a third party ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 86.2 100.0

Subordinated retained interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 97.9 157.1

Energizer's investment in SPEÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 97.9 157.1

(14) Preferred Stock

Energizer's Articles of Incorporation authorize Energizer to issue up to 10 million shares of $.01 par value
of preferred stock. As of September 30, 2001, there were no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

(15) Shareholders Equity

On March 16, 2000, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one share purchase right (Right) for
each outstanding share of ENR common stock. Each Right entitles a shareholder of ENR stock to purchase
an additional share of ENR stock at an exercise price of $150, which price is subject to antidilution
adjustments. Rights, however, may only be exercised if a person or group has acquired, or commenced a public
tender for 20% or more of the outstanding ENR stock, unless the acquisition is pursuant to a tender or
exchange oÅer for all outstanding shares of ENR stock and a majority of the Board of Directors determines
that the price and terms of the oÅer are adequate and in the best interests of shareholders (a Permitted OÅer).
At the time that 20% or more of the outstanding ENR stock is actually acquired (other than in connection
with a Permitted OÅer), the exercise price of each Right will be adjusted so that the holder (other than the
person or member of the group that made the acquisition) may then purchase a share of ENR stock at one-
third of its then-current market price. If Energizer merges with any other person or group after the Rights
become exercisable, a holder of a Right may purchase, at the exercise price, common stock of the surviving
entity having a value equal to twice the exercise price. If Energizer transfers 50% or more of its assets or
earnings power to any other person or group after the Rights become exercisable, a holder of a Right may
purchase, at the exercise price, common stock of the acquiring entity having a value equal to twice the exercise
price.

Energizer can redeem the Rights at a price of $.01 per Right at any time prior to the time a person or
group actually acquires 20% or more of the outstanding ENR stock (other than in connection with a
Permitted OÅer). In addition, following the acquisition by a person or group of at least 20%, but not more than
50% of the outstanding ENR stock (other than in connection with a Permitted OÅer), Energizer may
exchange each Right for one share of ENR stock. Energizer's Board of Directors may amend the terms of the
Rights at any time prior to the time a person or group acquires 20% or more of the outstanding ENR stock
(other than in connection with a Permitted OÅer) and may amend the terms to lower the threshold for
exercise of the Rights. If the threshold is reduced it cannot be lowered to a percentage which is less than 10%,
or, if any shareholder holds 10% or more of the outstanding ENR stock at that time, the reduced threshold
must be greater than the percentage held by that shareholder. The Rights will expire on April 1, 2010.
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At September 30, 2001, there were 300 million shares of ENR stock authorized, of which approximately
8.4 million shares were reserved for issuance under the 2000 Incentive Stock Plan.

In September 2000, Energizer's Board of Directors approved a share repurchase plan authorizing the
repurchase of up to 5 million shares of Energizer's common stock, of which approximately 3.8 million shares
have been repurchased.

(16) Financial Instruments and Risk Management

Foreign currency contracts Ó Energizer enters into foreign exchange forward contracts and, to a lesser
extent, purchases options and enters into zero-cost option collars to mitigate potential losses in earnings or
cash Öows on foreign currency transactions. Energizer has not designated any Ñnancial instruments as hedges
for accounting purposes. Foreign currency exposures are primarily related to anticipated intercompany
purchase transactions and intercompany borrowings. Other foreign currency transactions to which Energizer is
exposed include external purchase transactions and intercompany receivables, dividends and service fees.

The table below summarizes, by instrument and by major currency, the contractual amounts of
Energizer's forward exchange contracts and purchased currency options in U.S. dollar equivalents at year-end.
These contractual amounts represent transaction volume outstanding and do not represent the amount of
Energizer's exposure to credit or market loss. Foreign currency contracts are generally for one year or less.

2001 2000

Instrument

Forwards ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $121.3 $122.5

Options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 16.0 25.0

Currency

Swiss franc ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 105.7 117.2

Canadian dollar ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 25.0

EuroÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 27.5 Ì

Other currenciesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.1 5.3

Concentration of Credit Risk Ó The counterparties to foreign currency contracts consist of a number of
major international Ñnancial institutions and are generally institutions with which Energizer maintains lines of
credit. Energizer does not enter into foreign exchange contracts through brokers nor does it trade foreign
exchange contracts on any other exchange or over-the-counter markets. Risk of currency positions and
market-to-market valuation of positions are strictly monitored at all times.

Energizer continually monitors positions with, and credit ratings of, counterparties both internally and by
using outside rating agencies. Energizer has implemented policies that limit the amount of agreements it
enters into with any one party. While nonperformance by these counterparties exposes Energizer to potential
credit losses, such losses are not anticipated due to the control features mentioned.

Energizer sells to a large number of customers primarily in the retail trade, including those in mass
merchandising, drugstore, supermarket and other channels of distribution throughout the world. Energizer
performs ongoing evaluations of its customers' Ñnancial condition and creditworthiness, but does not generally
require collateral. While the competitiveness of the retail industry presents an inherent uncertainty, Energizer
does not believe a signiÑcant risk of loss from a concentration of credit risk exists with respect to accounts
receivable.

Financial Instruments Ó Energizer's Ñnancial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
and long-term debt, foreign currency contracts, and interest rate swap agreements. Due to the nature of cash
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and cash equivalents and short-term borrowings, including notes payable, carrying amounts on the balance
sheet approximate fair value.

At September 30, 2001 and 2000, the fair market value of long-term debt was $242.2 and $371.9,
respectively, compared to its carrying value of $225.0 and $370.0, respectively. The fair value of the long-term
debt is estimated using yields obtained from independent pricing sources for similar types of borrowing
arrangements.

The fair value of foreign currency contracts is the amount that Energizer would receive or pay to
terminate the contracts, considering Ñrst, quoted market prices of comparable agreements, or in the absence of
quoted market prices, such factors as interest rates, currency exchange rates and remaining maturities. Based
on these considerations, Energizer would receive a total net payment of $6.7 and would be required to make a
payment of $2.4 to counterparties for outstanding foreign currency contracts at September 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. However, these payments are unlikely due to the fact that Energizer enters into foreign currency
contracts to hedge identiÑable foreign currency exposures, and as such would generally not terminate such
contracts.

(17) Environmental and Legal Matters

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters Ó The operations of Energizer, like those of other
companies engaged in the battery business, are subject to various federal, state, foreign and local laws and
regulations intended to protect the public health and the environment. These regulations primarily relate to
worker safety, air and water quality, underground fuel storage tanks, and waste handling and disposal.

Energizer has received notices from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, state agencies and/or
private parties seeking contribution, that it has been identiÑed as a ""potentially responsible party''
(PRP) under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act and may be
required to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to nine federal ""Superfund'' sites. It may also be required
to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to a state-designated site. Liability under the applicable federal and
state statutes which mandate cleanup is strict, meaning that liability may attach regardless of lack of fault, and
joint and several, meaning that a liable party may be responsible for all of the costs incurred in investigating
and cleaning up contamination at a site. However, liability in such matters is typically shared by all of the
Ñnancially viable responsible parties.

The amount of Energizer's ultimate liability in connection with those sites may depend on many factors,
including the volume and toxicity of material contributed to the site, the number of other PRPs and their
Ñnancial viability, and the remediation methods and technology to be used.

In addition, Energizer undertook certain programs to reduce or eliminate the environmental contamina-
tion at the rechargeable battery facility in Gainesville, Florida, which was divested in November 1999. In
2001, the buyer, as well as its operating subsidiary which owns and operates the Gainesville facility, Ñled
petitions in bankruptcy court. In the event that the buyer would become unable to continue such programs,
Energizer could be required to bear Ñnancial responsibility for such programs as well as for other known and
unknown environmental conditions at the site.

Many European countries, as well as the European Union, have been very active in adopting and
enforcing environmental regulations. In many developing countries in which Energizer operates, there has not
been signiÑcant governmental regulation relating to the environment, occupational safety, employment
practices or other business matters routinely regulated in the United States. As such economies develop, it is
possible that new regulations may increase the risk and expense of doing business in such countries.

Accruals for environmental remediation are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred
and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated, based on current law and existing technologies.
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These accruals are adjusted periodically as assessments take place and remediation eÅorts progress, or as
additional technical or legal information becomes available.

It is diÇcult to quantify with certainty the potential Ñnancial impact of actions regarding expenditures for
environmental matters, particularly remediation, and future capital expenditures for environmental control
equipment. Nevertheless, based upon the information currently available, Energizer believes that its ultimate
liability arising from such environmental matters, taking into account established accruals of $5.9 at
September 30, 2001 for estimated liabilities, should not be material to its Ñnancial position. Such liability
could, however, be material to results of operations or cash Öows for a particular quarter or year.

Legal Proceedings Ó Energizer previously disclosed that Zinc Products Company, a division of Alltrista
Corp., a supplier of zinc cans used in the manufacture of batteries, Ñled suit against Energizer, claiming
breach of contract when Energizer closed its Fremont, Ohio plant. In January of 2001, the suit was dismissed
upon a settlement payment, in an immaterial amount, by Energizer.

In October of 2001, Energizer entered into separate settlement agreements with Strategic Electronics and
Duracell related to outstanding contract claims associated with Duracell's and Energizer's on-label battery
testers. Under the terms of the agreements, mutual releases of all outstanding claims were given, and
Energizer was licensed to utilize any applicable patents related to its on-label battery tester.

Energizer and its subsidiaries are parties to a number of other legal proceedings in various jurisdictions
arising out of the operations of the Energizer business.

Many of these legal matters are in preliminary stages and involve complex issues of law and fact, and may
proceed for protracted periods of time. The amount of liability, if any, from these proceedings cannot be
determined with certainty. However, based upon present information, Energizer believes that its ultimate
liability, if any, arising from pending legal proceedings, asserted legal claims and known potential legal claims
which are likely to be asserted, should not be material to Energizer's Ñnancial position, taking into account
established accruals for estimated liabilities. These liabilities, however, could be material to results of
operations or cash Öows for a particular quarter or year.

(18) Other Commitments and Contingencies

Future minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating leases in eÅect as of September 30,
2001 were: 2002 Ó $15.7, 2003 Ó $9.9, 2004 Ó $8.5, 2005 Ó $7.8, 2006 Ó $7.7 and thereafter Ó $31.7. These
leases are primarily for oÇce facilities.

Total rental expense for all operating leases was $17.9, $17.5 and $21.5 in 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively.
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(19) Supplemental Financial Statement Information

Supplemental Balance Sheet Information:

2001 2000

Inventories

Raw materials and suppliesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 47.0 $ 64.0

Work in process ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 91.4 87.0

Finished productsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 222.9 308.1

Total Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 361.3 $ 459.1

Other Current Assets

Investment in SPE (see Note 13)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 97.9 $ 157.1

Miscellaneous receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25.3 36.6

Deferred income tax beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 46.3 38.9

Prepaid expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 39.8 44.1

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.6 2.0

Total Other Current Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 209.9 $ 278.7

Property at Cost

Land ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 10.1 $ 14.6

Buildings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 147.6 140.6

Machinery and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 834.5 816.9

Construction in progress ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 37.8 47.7

Total gross property ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,030.0 1,019.8

Accumulated depreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 553.9 534.4

Total Net PropertyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 476.1 $ 485.4

Other Assets

Goodwill (net of accumulated amortization: 2001 Ó $32.7, 2000 Ó $117.0)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 38.1 $ 168.0

Other intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization: 2001 Ó $364.7, 
2000 Ó $356.1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 72.7 82.4

Pension asset ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 106.2 102.0

Deferred charges and other assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21.2 25.4

Total Other AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 238.2 $ 377.8

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued advertising, promotion and allowances ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 143.2 $ 123.2

Accrued salaries, vacations and incentive compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 47.2 47.4

Restructuring reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.6 3.9

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 84.7 74.1

Total Other Current Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 275.7 $ 248.6

Other Non-current Liabilities

Postretirement beneÑt liability ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 91.7 $ 87.7

Other non-current liability ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 77.8 69.0

Total Other Non-current LiabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 169.5 $ 156.7
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:

2001 2000 1999

Balance at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $12.5 $19.3 $19.6

Provision charged to expenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.8 5.1 6.7

Write-oÅs, less recoveriesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3.9) (5.9) (7.0)

Transfer to SPE (see Note 13) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.4 (6.0) Ì

Balance at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $11.8 $12.5 $19.3

Supplemental Cash Flow Statement Information:

2001 2000 1999

Interest paidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $36.1 $19.5 $11.7

Income taxes paidÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 83.1 86.5 44.0

(20) Segment Information

Energizer manufactures and markets dry cell batteries including alkaline, carbon zinc, miniature and
specialty batteries, and Öashlights and other lighting products throughout the world. Operations are managed
via four major geographic areas Ì North America (the United States, Canada and Caribbean), Asia PaciÑc,
Europe, and South and Central America (including Mexico). This structure is the basis for Energizer's
reportable operating segment information disclosed below. Segment performance is evaluated based on
operating proÑt, exclusive of general corporate expenses, restructuring charges and amortization of goodwill
and intangibles. Financial items, such as interest income and expense, are managed on a global basis at the
corporate level.

Intersegment sales are generally valued at market-based prices and represent the diÅerence between total
sales and external sales as presented in the table below. Segment proÑtability includes proÑt on these
intersegment sales. One single mass merchandiser accounted for 16.6%, 15.3% and 13.5% of total net sales in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, primarily in North America.

2001 2000 1999

Total External Total External Total External
Net Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales

North AmericaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,068.8 $ 970.6 $1,228.2 $1,123.9 $1,131.1 $1,031.1

Asia PaciÑcÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 373.8 329.0 465.2 395.5 432.0 386.8

EuropeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 264.1 261.4 287.1 278.6 326.1 322.8

South and Central America ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143.2 133.2 147.5 129.7 154.4 137.8

Total Net Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,694.2 $1,927.7 $1,878.5
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2001 2000 1999

Operating ProÑt before Restructuring Charges, Amortization and
Unusual Items

North America ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 203.0 $311.9 $291.4

Asia PaciÑc ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 75.8 111.9 89.2

Europe ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2.6) (0.2) (1.2)

South and Central AmericaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.1 12.1 14.5

Total segment proÑtability ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 283.3 435.7 393.9

General corporate expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20.9) (37.4) (54.0)

Research and development expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (46.4) (49.9) (48.5)

Operating ProÑt before Restructuring Charges, Amortization
and Unusual Items ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 216.0 348.4 291.4

Provision for goodwill impairmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (119.0) Ì Ì

Provisions for restructuring ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (29.8) Ì (9.9)

Intellectual property rights income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20.0 Ì Ì

Costs related to spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (5.5) Ì

Loss on disposition of Spanish aÇliateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (15.7) Ì

Amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (21.2) (24.1) (25.0)

Interest and other Ñnancial items ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (34.5) (23.9) (8.3)

Total Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Income
Taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 31.5 $279.2 $248.2

Depreciation

North America ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 38.1 $ 34.8 $ 45.0

Asia PaciÑc ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11.5 12.4 11.1

Europe ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.4 7.7 10.3

South and Central AmericaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.6 3.0 2.0

Total Depreciation ExpenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 58.6 $ 57.9 $ 68.4
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2001 2000 1999

Assets at Year-End

North AmericaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 851.7 $ 956.5 $ 815.5

Asia PaciÑcÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 195.7 245.7 271.4

EuropeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 259.2 244.7 282.2

South and Central America ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 80.2 96.2 98.0

Total segment assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,386.8 1,543.1 1,467.1

Goodwill and other intangible assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 110.8 250.4 299.4

Investment in discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 67.2

Total Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,497.6 $1,793.5 $1,833.7

Capital Expenditures

North AmericaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 69.0 $ 56.0 $ 39.6

Asia PaciÑcÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.6 8.4 18.4

EuropeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.6 6.0 8.9

South and Central America ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.7 2.4 2.3

Total Capital Expenditures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 77.9 $ 72.8 $ 69.2

Geographic Segment Information:

2001 2000 1999

Net Sales

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 903.4 $1,053.5 $ 972.4

International ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 790.8 874.2 906.1

Total Net Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,694.2 $1,927.7 $1,878.5

Long-Lived Assets

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 527.1 $ 517.9 $ 404.6

International ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 187.2 345.3 387.9

Total Long Lived-AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 714.3 $ 863.2 $ 792.5

Supplemental product information is presented below for revenues from external customers.

2001 2000 1999

Net Sales

Alkaline BatteriesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,124.5 $1,282.3 $1,205.5

Carbon Zinc Batteries ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 263.4 324.3 366.7

Lighting ProductsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 114.0 130.4 131.1

Miniature Batteries ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 67.2 64.9 65.7

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 125.1 125.8 109.5

Total Net Sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,694.2 $1,927.7 $1,878.5
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(21) Quarterly Financial Information Ì (Unaudited)

The results of any single quarter are not necessarily indicative of Energizer's results for the full year. Net
earnings of Energizer are signiÑcantly impacted in the Ñrst quarter by the additional sales volume associated
with the December holiday season.

First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal 2001

Net sales (a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $559.3 $355.0 $347.2 $ 432.7

Gross proÑt (a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 247.7 150.4 131.4 165.6

Net earnings/(loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54.2 5.6 15.7 (114.5)

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.57 $ 0.06 $ 0.17 $ (1.25)

First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal 2000

Net sales (a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $678.2 $364.0 $404.3 $481.2

Gross proÑt (a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 334.6 155.4 184.2 209.5

Earnings from continuing operations (b) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 104.7 15.7 23.2 36.6

Gain on disposition of discontinued operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1.2 Ì Ì

Net earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $104.7 $ 16.9 $ 23.2 $ 36.6

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (c)

Earnings from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.07 $ 0.17 $ 0.24 $ 0.38

Net gain on discontinued operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 0.01 Ì Ì

Net earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.07 $ 0.18 $ 0.24 $ 0.38

(a) Certain reclassiÑcations have been made to comply with EITF 00-10, 00-14 and 00-25. See Note 2 for
further discussion.

First Second Third

Fiscal 2001

Net sales as disclosed in 10Q ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $558.7 $351.9 $346.6

ReclassiÑcations, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.6 3.1 0.6

ReclassiÑed net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $559.3 $355.0 $347.2

Gross proÑt as disclosed in 10Q ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $266.7 $162.3 $145.0

ReclassiÑcations, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (19.0) (11.9) (13.6)

ReclassiÑed gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $247.7 $150.4 $131.4
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First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal 2000

Net sales as disclosed in 10KÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $673.6 $359.9 $402.8 $478.0

ReclassiÑcations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.6 4.1 1.5 3.2

ReclassiÑed net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $678.2 $364.0 $404.3 $481.2

Gross proÑt as disclosed in 10KÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $351.4 $167.3 $196.9 $224.0

ReclassiÑcations, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (16.8) (11.9) (12.7) (14.5)

ReclassiÑed gross proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $334.6 $155.4 $184.2 $209.5

(b) Earnings from continuing operations include the following items:

2001 2000

Second quarter

Costs related to spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3.3)

Loss on disposition of Spanish aÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (15.7)

Capital loss tax beneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 24.4

Third quarter

Intellectual property rights income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12.3 Ì

Fourth quarter

Provision for goodwill impairment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (119.0) Ì

Provisions for restructuring ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (19.4) Ì

(c) For the periods prior to the spin-oÅ, shares used in the earnings per share calculation are based on the
weighted-average number of shares of Ralston common stock outstanding adjusted for the distribution of
one share of Energizer stock for each three shares of Ralston stock.

(22) Pro Forma Financial Results

The pro forma consolidated statements of earnings for the year ended September 30, 2000 and 1999
present the consolidated results of Energizer's operations assuming the spin-oÅ had occurred as of October 1,
1999. Such statements of earnings has been prepared by adjusting the historical statement of earnings to
indicate the eÅect of estimated costs and expenses, the recapitalization associated with the spin-oÅ and the
synchronization of international operations' reporting.

The pro forma results from September 30, 2000 also reÖect the synchronization of international
operations' reporting (see Note 2).

The pro forma statement of earnings may not necessarily reÖect the consolidated results of operations
that would have existed had the spin-oÅ been eÅected on the dates speciÑed nor are they necessarily indicative
of future results.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Earnings:

Year Ended September 30, 2000

Pro Forma Reporting
Historical Adjustments Synchronization Pro Forma
9/30/00 Spin-oÅ Adjustments (h) 9/30/00

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,927.7 $ Ì $(28.4) $1,899.3

Cost of products sold ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,044.0 Ì (11.8) 1,032.2

Selling, general and administrative expenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 344.8 4.0(a) Ì 348.8

Ì 0.8(b) Ì Ì

Ì (0.8)(c) Ì Ì

Advertising and promotion expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 164.7 Ì Ì 164.7

Research and development expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 49.9 Ì Ì 49.9

Costs related to spin-oÅ ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.5 Ì Ì 5.5

Loss on disposition of Spanish aÇliateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15.7 Ì Ì 15.7

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 27.5 17.1(d) (0.2) 44.4

Other Ñnancing items, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3.6) Ì (1.0) (4.6)

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations before
taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 279.2 (21.1) (15.4) 242.7

Income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (99.0) (23.4)(e) 6.4 (107.6)

Ì 8.4(f) Ì Ì

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 180.2 $(36.1) $ (9.0) $ 135.1

Earnings per share from continuing operations (g)

BasicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.88 $ 1.41

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.87 $ 1.40

Weighted-average shares of common stock (g)

BasicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 96.1 96.1

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 96.3 96.3

(a) To reÖect the incremental costs associated with becoming a stand-alone company including Board of
Director costs, stock exchange registration fees, shareholder record keeping services, external Ñnancial
reporting, treasury services, tax planning and compliance, certain legal expenses, and compensation
planning and administration.

(b) To adjust pension income on plan assets transferred to Energizer plans upon the spin-oÅ.

(c) To eliminate expense of certain postretirement beneÑts retained by Ralston.

(d) To reÖect the increase in interest expense associated with debt levels to be assumed at spin-oÅ. The
adjustment reÖects an average interest rate of 6.7% for $67.0 of incremental notes payable and 7.2% for
$411.0 of incremental long-term debt. Approximately $303.0 of the incremental debt has a variable
interest rate. A 1/8% variation in the interest rate would change interest expense by $.4.

(e) To reÖect taxes as if Energizer was a single, stand-alone U.S. taxpayer.

(f) To reÖect tax eÅect of the above pro forma adjustments.

(g) The number of shares used to compute earnings per share is based on the weighted-average number of
basic shares of Ralston stock outstanding during the period adjusted for the distribution of one share of
Energizer stock for each three shares of Ralston stock and the weighted-average number of shares of
Energizer shares outstanding from April 1, 2000 to September 30, 2000.

54



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per share data)

(h) To reÖect adjustments related to the synchronization of international reporting as discussed in Note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Earnings:

Year Ended September 30, 1999

Pro Forma
Historical Adjustments Pro Forma
9/30/99 Spin-oÅ 9/30/99

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,878.5 $ Ì $1,878.5

Cost of products soldÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,059.5 Ì 1,059.5

Selling, general and administrative expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 368.4 8.0 (a) 371.3

Ì (3.3)(b) Ì

Ì (1.8)(c)(d) Ì

Advertising and promotion expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 137.8 Ì 137.8

Research and development expenseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 48.5 Ì 48.5

Provisions for restructuring ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.8 Ì 7.8

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.6 36.9 (e) 44.5

Other Ñnancing items, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.7 Ì 0.7

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations before taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 248.2 (39.8) 208.4

Income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (88.4) (11.2)(f) (91.5)

Ì 8.1 (g)

Earnings/(loss) from continuing operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 159.8 $(42.9) $ 116.9

Earnings per share from continuing operations (h)

Basic and diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.56 $ 1.14

Weighted-average shares of common stock (h)

Basic and diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 102.6 102.6

(a) To reÖect the incremental costs associated with becoming a stand-alone company including Board of
Director costs, stock exchange registration fees, shareholder record keeping services, external Ñnancial
reporting, treasury services, tax planning and compliance, certain legal expenses, and compensation
planning and administration.

(b) To adjust pension income on plan assets transferred to Energizer plans upon the spin-oÅ.

(c) To eliminate expense of certain postretirement beneÑts retained by Ralston.

(d) In addition to costs described above, compensation for certain executive oÇcers will be higher than the
costs included in the historical Ñnancial statements. The amount of the increase cannot be determined at
this time.

(e) To reÖect the increase in interest expense associated with debt levels to be assumed at spin-oÅ. The
adjustment reÖects an average interest rate of 7.0% for $150.0 of incremental notes payable and 7.7% for
$343.9 of incremental long-term debt. The incremental notes payable will have a variable interest rate. A
1/8% variation in the interest rate would change interest expense by $.4.

(f) To reÖect taxes as if Energizer was a single, stand-alone U.S. taxpayer.
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(g) To reÖect tax eÅect of the above pro forma adjustments.

(h) The number of shares used to compute earnings per share is based on the weighted-average number of
basic shares of Ralston stock outstanding during the period adjusted for the distribution of one share of
Energizer stock for each three shares of Ralston stock.
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